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HONOUR ROLL 

YEAR   PRESIDENT     TREASURER  ADMINISTRATOR 
1972/73  GIBSON   -   S. McIVOR 

1973/74  D. WATTS   -   M. KINGSTON 

1974/75  S. STEPHENS  -   H. LINKLATER 

1975/76  S. STEPHENS  -   H. LINKLATER 

1976/77  R. CUTTEN    P. KINGSTON  J. HUNT 

1977/78  R. CUTTEN   -   J. HUNT 

1978/79  T. COUPER    K. WHITESIDE  J. HUNT 

1979/80  T. COUPER    K. WHITESIDE  J. HUNT 

1980/81  T. COUPER    T. MUCCIARONE  J. HUNT 

1981/82  A. HOAREAU   L. BORSHOFF  J. HUNT 

1982/83  A. HOAREAU             H. NORTHERN(ASST) J. HUNT 

1983/84  L. WEBSTER               R. THOMAS (ASST) J. HUNT 

1984/85  J. WEINBRECHT        R. WINFIELD(ASST) J. HUNT 

1985/86  J. WEINBRECHT        R. WINFIELD(ASST) J. HUNT 

1986/87  R. DEN BOER    J. WIENBRECHT  J. HETHERINGTON 

1987/88  R. DEN BOER   R. HOWARD  G. YOUNG 

1988/89  S. STEPHENS  -   K. DEN BOER 

1989/90  S. STEPHENS  -   K. DEN BOER 

1990/91  R. LITTLE    K. DEN BOER  A. BECKINGHAM 

1991/92  R. LITTLE    M. CUTHBERT  A. BECKINGHAM/H. LONGMAN 

1992/93  R. LITTLE    A. LAMONT  H. LONGMAN 

        K. DEN BOER  R. KORTE 

1993/94  M. CUTHBERT   S. WINFIELD  R. KORTE 

1994/95  M. CUTHBERT   S. WINFIELD  R. FLOWER 

1995/96  R. LITTLE    S. WINFIELD  R. FLOWER 

1996/97  R. LITTLE    S. WINFIELD  R. FLOWER 

1997/98  R. LITTLE    S. WINFIELD  R. FLOWER 

1998/99  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

1999/00  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2000/01  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2001/02  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2002/03  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2003/04  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2004/05  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2005/06  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2006/07  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   C. ROBERTS/K. CRADDOCK 

2007/08  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   K. CRADDOCK 

2008/09  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   K. CRADDOCK 

2009/10  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   K. CRADDOCK 

2010/11  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   K. CRADDOCK/K. ROSSEN 

2011/12  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   K. ROSSEN 

2012/13  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT           K.ROSSEN/N.CAMERON/J.CHAMP 

2013/14  R. LITTLE    B. ELLIOTT   J. CHAMP 

2014/15  R. LITTLE    N. MASSAM  J. CHAMP 

2015/16  R. LITTLE    N. MASSAM  J. CHAMP 

2016/17  R. LITTLE    N. MASSAM  J. CHAMP 

2017/18  R. LITTLE    N. MASSAM  J. CHAMP 

2018/19  R. LITTLE    V. O’BRIEN   J. CHAMP 

2019/20  W. EDWARDS   V. O’BRIEN   J. CHAMP/S. JONES 

2020/21  W. EDWARDS    V. O’BRIEN/MARK THOMAS  S.JONES 
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LIFE MEMBERS 
 

J. HUNT S. STEPHENS R. DEN BOER S. WINFIELD       TIM WATERHOUSE 

R. LITTLE J. CHAMP  M. WILKINSON B. ELLIOTT          SIMON RUMSEY 

P.CARROLL C. STEELE  B. GRAY  K. ROSE        K. DIAZ 

C. HUGHES M. DENT  L. FALCONBRIDGE  

 

 

OFFICE BEARERS 

2020/21 
 

 

  PRESIDENT    WILLIAM (BILL) EDWARDS 

 

  VICE PRESIDENT   CHARLIE SMART 

 

  ADMINISTRATOR   SHANNAN JONES 

 

TREASURER    VERICA O’BRIEN / MARK THOMAS 

 

  SECRETARY    PAUL GUYLER 

 

  PROPERTY OFFICER  DANIEL SIXSMITH 

   

  WABL CO-ORDINATOR  NORBERT YIP 

 

  PUBLICITY OFFICER  CHARLIE SMART 

 

  REFEREES CO-ORDINATOR CODI THOMSON  / JODY BROWN 

 

  COACHES CO-ORDINATOR BILL EDWARDS  

 

  COMMITTEE MEMBERS  PHIL CROOT 

       ANGELA McANULTY 

       KELLY RANDALL 

       KYLIE VARDY 

       ROBERT LITTLE  

       JERRITH REYNOLDS 

        

 

  AUDITOR    STRATEGIC INTERGRATIVE ACCOUNTANTS 
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Presidents Report 
Bill Edwards – President 

2021 has been a year of consolidation for the HRBA committee after some 

major changes during 2020. We fortunately had less disruption with only two 

Covid-19 related shutdowns.  

 

Key initiatives implemented  

• Digitising our operations, HRBA is now paperless 

• Modifying the Under 10 rules 

• Consolidating the Aussie Hoops program 

• The introduction of Saturday morning competition for Aussie Hoops and       

Under 10’s 

• Consolidating the financial and operational platforms of the association 

• Consolidating the referee program 

• Introducing both Registrar and Delegate Meetings for a cohesive 

relationship with clubs 

• Expansion of the WABL pathway from 9 to 14 teams 

• Significant rebuild of the constitution (still in progress) 

• Rework of the bylaws 

• Saturdays are secured indoors for, summer season enabling greater use of the Mundaring Arena 

• A` Women in Basketball’ night for the advancement of female participation 

 

Aussie Hoops 

Significant contributors to our Aussie Hoops program were Jerrith Reynolds, Stevie Reynolds, Nick Reynolds, 

Jacquie Perry, Isaac Froby and most recently Veronica Burbidge and Sam Greenacre. Thank you to you all. 

 

Executive and Management Committee 

To our Executive and management committee, thank you for your professionalism and service to HRBA over 

the past year. Your passion, enthusiasm, and countless volunteer hours to meet the challenges and general 

workload is acknowledged and appreciated. 

 

Finally, everything we do is underpinned by the face of HRBA Shannan Jones, thank you for all you do. 

 

It has been a privilege to again the President of Hills Raiders Basketball Association over the past year and I 

look forward to the next chapter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WABL REPORT 
Norbert Yip – WABL Co-ordinator 
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Photo credit Kelly Brydson 

 

First and foremost, I would like to take this opportunity to thank: 

• All the volunteers that have invested countless number of hours developing and mentoring our performance 

pathway.  

• Our training partners in Mundaring Christian College and Swan View Senior High School.  

• The Shire of Mundaring as one of our main stakeholders, and, 

• All the parents and families, who have spent the time supporting the players in competing at the next level.  

• Our referees, they have been amazing in stepping up and supporting the WABL competition specially when all 

our teams have been at home at Mundaring Arena.  

This year was exciting with the prospect of a first full WABL season post-COVID. A couple of lockdowns later 

along with a couple of washout games, everyone in the basketball community still had the same excitement and 

was happy that players could play. BWA and the State has shown their know-how in managing the competition 

in what is now the new climate with COVID19 still making an impact on the sports a year later.  

 

WABL 2020  

The WABL season last year was shortened due to COVID however BWA and the WA Government made it 

possible for the competition to go ahead. During that season, HRBA had an U14 Girls Division 2 and an U14 

Boys Division 3 in the Grand Final. Our U14 Boys bringing home HRBA inaugural WABL Grand Final win 

topped off with our own Sam Ryan taking out Grand Final MVP.  

 

 

            

           U14 Div. 3 Boys Grand Final Champions                                   U14 Div. 2 Girls Runner up                             
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As we wrapped up the season, we celebrated the following award winners: 

 

Division Award Player 

12-2W  MVP Asha Winsor and Isabelle Dymnicki 

U14-2W  MVP Madison Dymnicki 

U14-3W  MVP Yolanda Montgomery 

U16-3W  MVP Annabelle Hathway 
   

U12-3M  MVP Reif D'Abbs 

U14-3M  MVP Kyeden Bowden 

U14-4M  MVP Kohen Romasz 

U16-4M  MVP Ethan Butcher 

U18-2M  MVP Ethan Croot 

U14-2W Bravery Award Emily Thomas-Loehn and Charlie Bailey 

U14-3W Bravery Award Rhianna Houghton 

U16-3W Bravery Award Hannah Cartland-Hore 

U12-3M Coaches Award Cameron Dilley 

U14-3M Coaches Award Sam Ryan 

U14-4M Coaches Award Taj Brydson 

U16-4M Coaches Award Munashe Chisi 

U18-2M Coaches Award Toby Warwick 

 

 

State Championship 2020 

HRBA entered 15 teams at the 2020 State Championships. Our Association finished the competition with 30 

wins, 35 losses and 1 draw.  

Our U11-2 Boys, U11-3 Girls, and U17-3 Men made it out of the group stage into the Semi Finals. The U11-2 

Boys advanced to the Grand Finals while the U11-3 Girls and U17-3 Men lost their respective Semi Final.  The 

U11-2 Boys fell short of a Grand Final win to Busselton by 7 points.  

A shout out to our own Emily Jones who was invited by BWA to participate in refereeing at the Finals 

weekend. 

 

 

 

 

 

As HRBA progressed in their WABL journey, we celebrated State Championship with The Raiders’ Award of 

Excellence, which has the following criteria: 
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1. Resilience – player demonstrated resilience and grit both during games and at training  

2. Team player – player showed a commitment to working as part of the team and made plays to benefit 

the team  

3. Sportsmanship – player displayed fair play and respect to opponents and game officials  

4. The recipients of the Raiders’ Award of Excellence for the 2020 State Championship campaign: 

Team Name - Division Player Name 

U11-2 B Bailey Ryan 

U11-3 B Toby Grills 

U13-2 B Isaiah Zeneth 

U13-3 B (1) Noah Harfouche 

U13-3 B (2) Max O’Neill 

U15-2 B Jamie Lobo 

U15-3 B Ace Waring 

U17-3 B Elijah Croot 

U19-2 B Isaac Croot 

U11-3 G Olivia Greenshaw 

U13-2 G Ariaan Foeken 

U13-3 G Olivia Bailey 

U15-2 G Charlie Bailey 

U15-3 G Shanae Morisey 

U17-3 G Mackenzie Thomas 

 

 

Grading Tournament 

In 2021, Basketball was the most played sports in WA – more participation at all levels. With a rapidly 

expanding WABL competition, we were given the opportunity to host a grading day for the U12 Boys at 

Mundaring Arena on the 20 February 2021. It was a successful day that was highlighted with our U12 boys 

team earning a spot in the Championship division at the end of the grading tournament.  

 

NBL1 Fundraiser 

Following the devastating fires that decimated within our community earlier this year, HRBA with the 

partnership of Perth Redbacks and Willetton Tigers hosted an NBL1 pre-season game. The game was a 

fundraiser to give back to one of the organisations, Disaster Relief Australia, that supported our community 

during this difficult time. A $2000 cheque was presented to the DRA at the conclusion of the evening.  
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Redbacks Classic 

This year we were able to host a pre-season tournament once again as we did back in 2019. The Redbacks 

Classic was held at Mundaring Arena between our teams and the Perth Redbacks as part of our pre-season 

preparations. Perth Redbacks has been very supportive since we first obtained our WABL licence two years 

ago; and nothing different this year as we partnered up once again for a successful pre-season tournament.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WABL 2021 
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This year has been our biggest season yet with 14 teams entered in the competition. This year also saw our first 

two championship division teams – U12 Boys and U20 Men.  

 

Team Division Coach Assistant Coach Team Manager 

U12B Championship Charlie Smart Genna Dilley Sally Harris 

U12B 4 Ryan Wherry Wayne Maxwell Sascha Maxwell 

U12G 2 Phil Croot Jodie Clemesha Courtney Bullock 

U12G 4 Norbert Yip Kate Kendrick Sandra Myles 

U14B 2 Ben Jenkins Nathaniel Walker Kelly Brydson 

U14B 4 Bill Edwards David Bearham Tina O’Neil 

Team Division Coach Assistant Coach Team Manager 

U14G 2 David Dyer Laura Mees Julie Seccull 

U14G 4 Michael Dymnicki Billie-Jo Thompson Quentin Bailey 

U16B 3 Jon Ryan/Jay 

Warwick 

 Sarah Cole 

U16B 4 Ryan Wherry Billie-Jo Thompson Racheal Price 

U16G 2 Phil Croot Lee Jenkins Anja De Beer 

U18B 2 Tracey Warwick  Rebecca Palumbo 

U18G 2 Norbert Yip Mark Thomas Danni Sargent 

U20M Championship Jay Warwick  Sharon Justice 

 

This WABL season would not have been possible without the volunteers listed above – from mentoring to 

encouraging and everything in between. They were outstanding with our players. As our Association continue 

to support the sport, we will need to invest time in a succession plan identifying new coaches and training them 

up to coach at the next level. 

 

50 Games Milestone 

As a young association, we have been looking forward to our players reaching that milestone. This year, we 

have two players that have achieved that milestone: Laila Jenkins and Maddison Dymnicki from our U16G2. 

These two players have been with our Association since the beginning of our journey. Well done both of you!  

We look forward to many more 50 and 100 games milestones as we continue to grow as an Association.  

 

WABL Subcommittee 

Finally, the WABL Subcommittee has been the driving force behind the organisation of all the WABL 

Competition and events. A big thank you to Anja De Beer, Charlie Smart, Genna Dilley, Jay Warwick, 

Michelle Edwards, Monika Thomas, and Phil Croot.  
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SUE HOWARD MEMORIAL TROPHY FOR 

OUTSTANDING COMMITTEE MEMBER 
1992/93 Peter/Karen ROYER   1993/94 Mike WILKINSON   

1994/95 Robert LITTLE   1995/96 Julie CHAMP 

1996/97 Stewart WINFIELD   1997/98 Joan BERENDSEN 

1998/99 Mike WILKINSON   1999/00 Bev ELLIOTT / Mike WILKINSON 

2000/01 Bev ELLIOT/Mike WILKINSON 2001/02 Bev ELLIOTT / Mike WILKINSON 

2002/03 Bev ELLIOTT    2003/04 Bev ELLIOTT 

2004/05 Bev ELLIOTT    2005/06 Bev ELLIOTT 

2006/07 Bev ELLIOTT    2007/08 Bev ELLIOTT 

2008/09 Bev ELLIOTT    2009/10  Bev ELLIOTT 

 2010/11 Bev ELLIOTT   2011/12 Bev ELLIOTT 

2012/13 Bev ELLIOTT    2013/14 Ken ROSE 

2014/15 Robert LITTLE   2015/16 Ken ROSE & Julie CHAMP 

2016/17 Natalie MASSAM   2017/18 Julie CHAMP  

2018/19 Deb WHITE-KIELY   2019/20                     - 

2020-21  - 

PRESIDENT’S AWARD 
1995/96 Derek WILKINSON   1997/98 Matthew ENFANTIE 

1998/99 Matthew ENFANTIE   1999/00 Layne & Joan BERENDSEN 

2001/02 Shaun CHAMP   2002/03 David BALL-HORNBLOW 

2003/04 Mike WILKINSON   2004/05 Mike WILKINSON 

2005/06 Mike WILKINSON   2006/07 Tim WATERHOUSE/Simon RUMSEY 

2007/08 Ken ROSE    2008/09 Ken ROSE/Mike WILKINSON 

2009/10 Tim WATERHOUSE   2010/11 Mike WILKINSON 

2011/12 Mike WILKINSON/Ken ROSE 2012/13 Mike WILKINSON 

2013/14 Mike WILKINSON   2014/15 Mike WILKINSON 

2015/16 Mike WILKINSON   2016/17 Julie CHAMP 

2017/18 Deb WHITE-KIELY   2018/19 Julie CHAMP  

2019/20            -    2020-21  - 
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MOST OUTSTANDING SENIOR PLAYER 
1994/95 Brad GRAY (Mounties)   1995/96 Brad GRAY (Mounties) 

1996/97 Tanya FIRTH (Allblacks)   1997/98 Tiffany HEWSON (Tigers) 

1998/99 Tiffany HEWSON (Sawyers Strikers) 1999/00 Catherine CORKHILL (Zodiacs) 

2000/01 Catherine CORKHILL (Zodiacs)  2001/02 Travers ELLIOTT (Bulls) 

2002/03 Holly PAYNE (Panthers)   2003/04 Ben RUMSEY (Sawyers Stickwads) 

2004/05 Travers ELLIOTT (Bulls)   2005/06 Dale ELLIOTT (Sawyers T-Wolves) 

2006/07 Dale ELLIOTT (Sawyers T-Wolves)  2007/08    Travers ELLIOTT (Panthers Red) 

2008/09    Travers ELLIOTT (Panthers Red)  2009/10    Rebecca RIDDEN (Sawyers Swift) 

2010/11    Rohan SANKEY (Panthers)              2011/12    James WATERHOUSE (Sawyers St tropics) 

2012/13  Aaron RUMSEY (Sawyers St Tropics)  2013/14   Billy GREY (Sawyers So Tuff) 

2014/15  Sarah MADDEN (Gidge Gangsters)  2015/16   Sally VERE (Sawyers Swift)  

2016/17  Lochlan BROWN (Sawyers Sabres)  2017/18 Amy PRESTON (Panthers Red) 

2018/19 William BATTISTESSA (Fear the Beard)  2019/20                               - 

This award was retired 2020-21. 

 

MOST OUTSTANDING JUNIOR PLAYER 
1990/91  C.HAMPSON (Cougars)   1991/92  B. TAPPER (Panthers Red) 

1992/93  Nichole RUWOLDT(Slammers)  1993/94  N. PRATT (Stoneville Suns) 

1994/95  N.PRATT(Stoneville Suns)   1995/96  Lauren KITSCHA (Panthers) 

1996/97  Lauren KITSCHA (Panthers)  1997/98  Catherine CORKHILL (Zodiacs) 

1998/99  Kate SHORTIS (Panthers)   1999/00  Steven BART(MDG Mavericks) 

2000/01  Carly AMOS (Panthers)   2001/02  Carly AMOS (Panthers) 

2002/03  Carly AMOS (Panthers)   2003/04  Stephanie OTTO (Sawyers Spice) 

2004/05  Shani AMOS (Black Magic)  2005/06  Teagan MORRELL (Oasis) 

2006/07  Jonathan DIAZ (Sawyers Suns)  2007/08  Caitlin BURROWS (Chidlow the Angels) 

2008/09  Jonathan DIAZ (Sawyers Suns)       Jessica DOLITCH (Panthers Black) 

2009/10  Chris FIRNS (Chidlow Demons)  2010/11   James TOMPSETT (Panthers) 

2011/12   Sam FOWLER (Panthers Red)    2012/13   Dylan WHITE-KIELY(Gidge Hotrods)  

2013/14   Madison ROSSEN(Panthers Red)  2014/15   Tyson LUMBACA (Helena Hustlers) 

2015/16   Madison ROSSEN (Panthers Red)  2016/17   Jaymie ROBINSON (Gidge Disco Ninjas) 

2017/18  Hamish MASSIE (Gidge Titans)  2018/19   Kayla WHITELY(Parky Cyclones) 

            Milan MONROE(MCC Mustangs) 

2019/20               -      

This award was retired 2020-21. 
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HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SENIOR SCORER 

1997/98 Tiffany HEWSON    Sawyers Strikers    284 points 

1998/99 Jason ALGER    Bulls       321 points 

1999/00 Catherine CORKHILL  Zodiacs     315 points 

2000/01 Jason ALGER    Bulls      279 points 
2001/02 Travers ELLIOTT    Bulls      292 points 

2002/03 Rebecca MERCER    Sawyers Seven    26.3ppg 

2003/04 Dale ELLIOTT    Sonics      22.1 ppg 

2004/05 Jason ALGER    Bulls      23.9ppg 

2005/06 Jason ALGER    Bulls      24.5ppg 

2006/07 Dale ELLIOTT    Sawyers T-Wolves    33.4ppg 

2007/08 Andrew THOMAS    T-Wolves     21.8ppg 

2008/09 Linda DAVIS     Gidge Allsorts     21.4ppg 

2009/10 Adam McKINLAY    Allblack     22.7ppg  

2010/11 Jess DOUTOH    Gidge Allsorts     21.2ppg 

2011/12 Chantelle Hocking   Sawyers Stunners    22.3ppg 

2012/13 Beau DAHL     Ballers      27.0 ppg 

2013/14 Billy GREY    Sawyers So Tuff    28.4ppg 

2014/15 Mitchell DELLE COSTE   Sawyers Spartans     15.5ppg 

2015/16 Mitchell DELLE COSTE   Sawyers Spartans     17.4ppg 

2016/17 Lochlan BROWN    Sawyers Sabres             15.8ppg  (253 points) 

2017/18 Joe KENDALL    Sawyers Spartans                              23.14ppg  (324 points) 

 

HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL JUNIOR SCORER 
1998/99 S. ARMITAGE    Chronic      404 points 

1999/00 Ehab ELGAMMEL    Strykers      278 points 

2000/01 J. BARNSLEY   Air       328 points 

2001/02 Kirk PEACOCK    Panthers      357 points 

2002/03 Nathan BASHER   Industrial B-Boys     22.2ppg 

2003/04 Adam McKINLAY    Dodgers      16.8ppg 

2004/05 Joshua GRAY    Panthers      22.8ppg 

2005/06 Tim HUNTLEY    All Stars      24.5ppg 

2006/07 Tim HUTCHINSON    Mundaring Mavericks     18.8ppg 

2007/08 Ryan ROBSON    Sawyers Stingrays     19.5ppg 

2008/09 Eliza BULLOCK    Crackaz      18.8ppg 

2009/10 Ryan ROBSON    Sawyers Stingrays     19.2ppg 

2010/11 Breanna HOLMES    Gidge Blue Stars     21.0ppg 

2011/12 Jaime Tedieke    Chidlow Cherrybombs    23.6ppg 

2012/13 Samantha KIRWAN   Sacred Heart Slammers    24.8 ppg 

2013/14 Madison ROSSEN    Glen Forest Destroyers    27.7ppg 

2014/15 Lauchy Staig     Gidge Dragons     18.1ppg 

2015/16 Samantha KIRWAN    Sacred Heart Slammers    24 ppg 

2016/17 Mikayla BOWEN    Darlington Demons                                19 ppg (304 points) 

2017/18 Tyson LUMBACA    Helena Hurricanes                               15.4 ppg (216 points)  
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CHAMPION CLUB AWARD 
 

    2000/01   SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

    2001/02    PANTHERS BASKETBALL CLUB 

    2002/03    SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2003/04    SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2004/05    SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2005/06    SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2006/07    SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2007/08    SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2008/09      SAWYERS VALLEY BASKETBALL CLUB 

2009/10   GIDGEGANNUP BASKETBALL CLUB 

2010/11           GIDGEGANNUP BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2011/12           PANTHERS BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2012/13           PANTHERS BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2013/14           PANTHERS BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2015/16           PANTHERS BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2016/17           HILLS LIONS’ BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2017/18           HILLS LIONS’ BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2018/19           PANTHERS BASKETBALL CLUB 

                                    2019/20   - 

This award was retired 2020-21. 
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MOST OUTSTANDING SENIOR REFEREE 
2001/02 Jamie GLEW    2002/03 Lizzie FALCONBRIDGE 

2003/04 Charlie WEAVER   2004/05 Ben HEPTINSTALL 

2005/06 Stewart WINFIELD   2006/07 Karen DIAZ 

2007/08 Lizzie FALCONBRIDGE  2008/09 Paul CARROLL 

2009/10 Karen DIAZ    2010/11 Paul CARROLL 

2011/12 Tony VITALICH   2012/13 Lizzie FALCONBRIDGE 

2013/14 Anis McGOWAN   2014/15 Paul CARROLL 

2015/16 Jarred VITALICH   2016/17 Lochlan BROWN 

2017/18 Jessica BOUDEWYNS  2019/20  -  

2020/21 Emily JONES 

     

MOST OUTSTANDING JUNIOR REFEREE 
2000/01 Charis WINFIELD   2001/02 Shaun CHAMP 

2002/03 Sean HICKEY    2003/04 Lana WINFIELD 

2004/05 Jenni NICHOLSON   2005/06 Rebecca RIDDEN 

2006/07 Dean BOUDEWYNS   2007/08 Deane BOUDEWYNS 

2008/09 Jonathan DIAZ   2009/10 Jessica BOUDEWYNS 

2010/11 Megan SUTTON   2011/12 Margaret MCGOWAN 

2012/13 Dylan WHITE-KIELY  2013/14 Katie BENFIELD 

2014/15 Jessica BOUDEWYNS  2015/16 Lochlan MAZURAK 

2016/17 Robert McGOWAN   2017/18 Amy BEATON 

2018/19 Jai BEAGLEY   2019/20  - 

2020/21 Mackenzie THOMAS 
 

OUTSTANDING ROOKIE REFEREE 
2001/02 Emma DURBRIDGE   2002/03 Jenni NICHOLSON 

2004/05 Leon VAN VOORTHUIZEN  2005/06 Tamara PARRY 

2006/07 Anthony VITALICH   2007/08 Anthony BOWDEN 

2008/09 Taylah DELLA   2009/10 Mark WARREN 
2011/12 Natasha VITALICH   2012/13 Aiden WHITE-KIELY 

2013/14 Robert McGOWAN   2014/15 Harper TABB 

2015/16 Gavin PASSMORE   2016/17 Halle AMUNDSEN 

2017/18 William BURBRIDGE  2018/19 Emily JONES  

2019/20  -    2020/21 Damon READ 
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H.R.B.A. AWARD - 250 GAMES REFEREED 
 

1999/00 Bruce WARRINGTON  2008/09 Karen DIAZ 

   Mike WILKINSON   2010/11 Paul CARROLL   

   Lizzie WEAVER   2011/12 Tony VITALICH   

   Joel CULLEN    2010/11 Anthony VITALICH   

   Matthew ENFANTIE     Dean BOUDEWYNS 

2000/01 Jamie GLEW    2012/13 Jonathan DIAZ 

2002/03 Rod Hough    2013/14 Anis McGOWAN   

              Stewart WINFIELD   2015/16     Jarred VITALICH / Angus McGOWAN 

   Ben HEPTINSTALL     Natasha VITALICH   

2004/05 Julie CHAMP / Charis WINFIELD 2016/17 Lochlan BROWN / Harper TABB 

   Shaun CHAMP / Lana WINFIELD   Jessica BOUWDYNS   

   Lizzie FALCONBRIDGE    Aiden WHITE-KIELY2017/18

   Dylan WHITE-KIELY  2019/20   Adam FOX /Tyson LUMBACA/  

                              Mitch MASSAM/Jacqui PERRY 

 2020/21 Emily JONES / Amy BEATON 

   Oceana D’ABBS  

   

H.R.B.A. AWARD - 500 GAMES REFEREED 
2000/01 Lizzie WEAVER   2003/04 Mike WILKINSON 

2008/09 Lizzie FALCONBRIDGE  2010/11 Karen DIAZ 

2012/13 Paul CARROLL   2015/16 Tony VITALICH 

2018/19 Lochlan BROWN, Harper TABB 2019/20 Jessica BOUDEWYNS/ 

   Aiden WHITE-KIELY    Jarred VITALICH 

2020/21 Ben HEPINSTALL 

    

 

H.R.B.A. AWARD - 750 GAMES REFEREED 
 

2012/13 Lizzie FALCONBRIDE  2013/14 Karen DIAZ 

2015/16 Paul CARROLL 

 

H.R.B.A. AWARD - 1000 GAMES REFEREED 
 

2014/15 Lizzie FALCONBRIDE / Karen DIAZ 

2016/17 Paul CARROLL 

 

H.R.B.A. AWARD - 1250 GAMES REFEREED 
 

2017/18 Lizzie FALCONBRIDGE / Karen DIAZ 

2018/19 Paul CARROLL 

 

H.R.B.A. AWARD - 1500 GAMES REFEREED  
 

2018/19 Lizzie Falconbridge  2019/20 Karen Diaz 
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UMPIRING RECORDS 2020/21 
 

HILLS RAIDERS BASKETBALL ASSOCIATION - UMPIRING RECORDS 

Umpire 
Career 
Total 

Winter 
2018 

Summer 
2018/19 

Winter 
2019 

Summer 
2019/20 

Winter 
2020 

Summer 
2020/21 

ANDERSON, Emily 18 0 0 0 0 0 18 

BAILEY, Charlotte 16 0 0 0 0 0 16 

BASTIN, Josh 23 0 0 0 19 4 0 

BEAGLEY Jai 148 25 33 0 34 8 48 

BEATON Amy 280 106 34 16 51 18 55 

BOUDEWYNS, Jessica 637 448 63 4 71 29 22 

BOULDEN, Michael 158 0 0 0 80 30 48 

BROWN Lochlan 577 466 18 9 45 6 33 

BRYDSON, Taj 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 

BURBRIDGE Veronica 42 0 15 9 12 0 6 

CARROLL, Paul 1476 1224 95 0 103 0 54 

CLEGG, Jayden 150 0 28 6 63 22 31 

CRADDOCK, William 14 0 0 0 0 0 14 

D'ABBS Oceana 309 37 55 38 77 21 81 

DEWAR, Kaleb 63 0 0 0 52 11 0 

DIAZ, Karen 1590 1393 104 34 59 0 0 

DILLEY, Jackson 8 0 0 0 0 0 8 

ELSDON, Jemima 24 0 0 0 0 19 5 

FALCONBRIDGE, Lizzie 1710 1554 58 98 0 0 0 

FOX Adam 331 250 0 2 26 18 35 

FOX, Sean 24 0 10 7 0 0 7 

FROBY, Isaac 31 0 0 0 0 0 31 

GOODWIN Matt 107 26 20 9 34 7 11 

GREENACRE Sam 205 0 9 0 80 34 82 

GREENACRE, Caitlyn 64 0 0 0 32 8 24 

GURBIEL, Brooklyn 47 0 0 0 0 0 47 

HALL, Amelia 30 0 0 0 0 0 30 

HEPTINSTALL, Ben 511 440 5 0 35 0 31 

HOLMES, Kaidyn 31 0 0 0 0 0 31 

ISA Abdul 64 0 50 0 12 2 0 

JENKINs, Laila 71 0 0 0 21 11 39 

JONES Emily 308 0 41 51 108 34 74 

JONES, Sofia 160 0 0 18 78 19 45 

JOYNES, Ben 19 0 0 0 0 0 19 

JUSTICE Declan 69 0 8 10 14 8 29 

LUMBACA Tyson 342 169 17 14 63 35 44 

LYNCH, William 47 0 0 0 15 0 32 

MARRIOTT Liam 171 15 32 29 49 18 28 

MARRIOTT Riley 181 20 33 29 53 20 26 

MARTIN, Jack 189 0 0 0 102 27 60 

MASSAM Ethan 230 0 79 0 78 15 58 

MASSAM Mitch 308 100 66 0 89 11 42 

McCLAREN, Talea 83 0 0 0 81 0 2 

McGOWAN Robert 444 261 43 45 74 10 11 

McKENZIE, Isabella 39 0 0 0 26 10 3 

MONRO, Milan 17 0 0 0 0 0 17 

NICHOLSON, Darren 169 0 0 0 62 44 63 

PAINI, Blake 47 0 0 0 0 0 47 

PARKER, Bonnie 47 0 0 0 30 7 10 

PARKER, Nikki 28 0 0 0 0 0 28 

PARKER, Reggie 34 0 0 0 24 10 0 

PERRY Jacqui 344 138 76 53 52 2 23 
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UMPIRING RECORDS 2020/21 
HILLS RAIDERS BASKETBALL ASSOCIATION - UMPIRING RECORDS CONT. 

PHILLIPS, Djet 12 0 0 0 12 0 0 

PHILLIPS, Djilawaa 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 

PHILLIPS, Waalitj 16 0 0 0 16 0 0 

RAMMAL, Ali 30 0 0 0 0 0 30 

READ, Damon 35 0 0 0 0 0 35 

REED, Matthew 35 0 0 0 0 0 35 

REYNOLDS, Nik 32 0 0 0 0 9 23 

REYNOLDS, Stevie 51 0 0 0 0 17 34 

ROVIS-TAYLOR, Sam 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

SECULL, Chelsea 11 0 0 0 0 0 11 

SMART Kelly 34 0 10 0 24 0 0 

SMITH, Rohan 76 0 0 0 14 24 38 

STANGER, Ashton 52 0 0 0 0 0 52 

STEELE, Cheryl 163 157 6 0 0 0 0 

STEWART, Jake 73 0 0 0 36 16 21 

STRELEIN, Thomas 76 0 0 0 0 0 76 

SYLVESTRE, Tao 14 0 0 0 0 0 14 

TAYLOR, Eli 11 0 0 0 5 6 0 

TAYLOR, Megan 27 0 0 0 16 1 10 

THOMAS, Mackenzie 129 0 0 0 36 18 75 

THOMPSON Cody 34 0 27 0 1 0 6 

THOMPSON, James 18 0 0 0 15 3 0 

VITALICH Jarred 506 437 24 27 18 0 0 

WALSTER Ewan 56 0 10 7 10 8 21 

WALSTER Rory 122 3 23 26 38 10 22 

WEST, Linkoln 13 0 0 0 0 0 13 

WESTLAND, Joshua 7 0 0 0 0 0 7 

WHITE-KIELY Aiden 809 518 96 59 106 4 26 

WILLIAMS Cade 141 50 53 29 9 0 0 

WILLIAMS Ethan 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 

WILLIAMS Jasmin 19 0 13 0 6 0 0 

WILLIAMS, DYLAN 16 0 0 0 16 0 0 

WOOD, Sebastian 142 0 0 17 36 21 68 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

A GRADE MEN 
1990/91  Ralph KORTE    MOUNTIES 

1991/92  Brad GRAY    MOUNTIES 

1992/93  D. SLEE    PANTHERS 

1993/94  D. SLEE    PANTHERS 

1994/95  Brad GRAY    MOUNTIES 

1995/96  Brad GRAY    MOUNTIES 

1996/97  Brad GRAY    MOUNTIES 

1997/98  Brad GRAY    MOUNTIES 

1998/99  Brad GRAY    CRIPPERS 

1999/00  Travers ELLIOTT   BULLS 

2000/01  Quentin JOST    BULLS 

2001/02  Travers ELLIOTT   BULLS 

2002/03  Travers ELLIOTT   BULLS 

2003/04  Dale ELLIOTT   SONICS 

2004/05  Travers ELLIOTT   BULLS 

2005/06  Dale ELLIOTT   SAWYERS T-WOLVES 

2006/07  Dale ELLIOTT   SAWYERS T-WOLVES 

2007/08  Travers ELLIOTT   PANTHERS RED 

2008/09  Travers ELLIOTT   PANTHERS RED 

2009/10  Scott MIDDLETON   KINGS 

2010/11  Adam MCKINLAY   COUGARS 

2011/12  James WATERHOUSE  SAWYERS ST TROPICS 

2012/13  Aaron RUMSEY   SAWYERS ST TROPICS 

2013/14  Billy GREY    SAWYERS SO TUFF 

2014/15  Mitchell DELLE COSTE  SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2015/16  Jonathan DIAZ   SAWYERS SUNS 

2016/17  Lochlan BROWN   SAWYERS SABRES 

2017/18  Lochlan BROWN   SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2018/19  Lochlan BROWN   SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2019/20  Ben SMITH    SAWYERS SUNS 

2020/21  Joshua DAVIES   PANTHERS RED 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

B GRADE MEN 
1990/91  J. HAMPSON    MAHOGANY CREEK 

1991/92  S. DAVIES    MOUNTIES 

1992/93  P. GRAHAM    C.S. BOMBERS 

1993/94  G. DARBY    CHIDLOW COUGARS 

1994/95  B. GARDINER   BIG B’S 

1995/96  Y. COUNCILLOR   VALLEY ROOS 

1998/99  Andrew HURST   VIPERS 

1999/00  Andrew EAST    COYOTES 

2000/01  Tim RENDULIC   NUGGETS 

2001/02  A. LINQUIST    BOOMERS 

2002/03  James HARTLEY   SAWYERS SABRES 

2003/04  Ben RUMSEY   SAWYERS STICKWADS 

2004/05  Ben RUMSEY   SAWYERS STICKWADS 

2005/06  Scott MIDDLETON   DUNK DUDEZ 

2008/09  Rohan SANKEY   PANTHERS BLACK 

2009/10  Daniel GOMM   GIDGE GOONS 

2010/11  Rohan SANKEY   PANTHERS 

2011/12  Lance MATTHEWS   MUNDARING DUKES 

2012/13  Travis HOGAN   BALLERS 

2018/19  William BATTISTESSA  FEAR THE BEARD  

2019/20  Marcus ORCHARD   PANTHERS WHITE 

2020//21  Adam PARORA   SAWYERS SABRES 

 

A GRADE WOMEN 
2000/01  Catherine CORKHILL  ZODIACS 

2001/02  Nicolette MACDONALD  ZARAHEMLA 

2002/03  Holly PAYNE    PANTHERS RED 

2003/04  Naomi MACDONALD  BRICK 

2004/05  Clare JOHNSTON   MUNDARING MAVERICKS 

2005/06  Rebecca RIDDEN   SAWYERS SWIFT 

2006/07  Lee-Ann PAVY   GIDGE CHICKS 

2007/08  Linda DAVIS    GIDGE ALLSORTS 

2008/09  Linda DAVIS    GIDGE ALLSORTS 

2009/10  Rebecca RIDDEN   SAWYERS SWIFT 

2010/11  Rebecca RIDDEN   SAWYERS SWIFT 

2011/12  Chantelle HOCKING   SAWYERS STUNNERS 

2012/13  Sally BART    SAWYERS SWIFT 

2013/14  Sally VERE    SAWYERS SWIFT 

2014/15  Sarah MADDEN   GIDGE GANGSTERS 

2015/16  Sally VERE    SAWYERS SWIFT 

2016/17  Jade HOWARD   PANTHERS RED 

2017/18  Madison ROSSEN   PANTHERS 

2018/19  Tiana JOHNSTON   DUKETTES 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
A GRADE WOMEN cont. 

2019/20  Maddie ROSSEN   DESTROYERS  

 2020/21  Imogen STAPLEY   HUSTLERS 

 

B GRADE WOMEN 
2017/18   Amy PRESTON   PANTHERS RED 

 

20’S UNDER MENS 
 2019/20   Ethan CROOT    MUSTANGS 

 2020/21   Elijah CROOT   MUSTANGS 

 

18’S UNDER BOYS DIVISION 1 

2001/02   Ehab ELGAMMEL   RED THREAT 

2002/03   Michael WALKER   INDUSTRIAL B-BOYS 

2003/04   Scott MIDDLETON   THE AND 1’S 

2004/05   Joel QUESTEL   JETS ROVERTECH 

2005/06   Matthew LEVAUX   KINGS 

2006/07   Adam McKINLAY   CELTICS 

2007/08   Rhys ORTON    CAVALEERS 

2009/10   Jake BREARLEY   SAWYERS SUNS 

2010/11   Rory LOBB    SAWYERS SUNS 

2011/12   Dylan STAIG    GIDGE GIANTS 

2012/13   Jordan VIDEON   SAWYERS SLAMMERS 

2013/14   Jordan VIDEON   SAWYERS SLAMMERS 

2014/15   Lachlan BROWN   SAWYERS SABRES 

2015/16   Lachlan BROWN   SAWYERS SABRES 

2016/17   Tyson LUMBACA   HELENA HOUN DAWGS 

2017/18   Benjamin SIXSMITH   CHIDLOW STORM 

2018/19        Ryleigh McCARTHY-WITHERIDGE    HILLS LIONS SABERTOOTHS 

2019/20   Riley  MARRIOTT   HELENA HOOPS 

     Elijah CROOT   MUSTANGS 

2020/21   James PULAMBO   Chidlow Cats Gold 

 

18’S UNDER BOYS DIVISION 2 
2018/19   Aidan McCRUM   GIDGE BOOMERS 

2020/21   Ethan MASSAM   HILLS LIONS’ TIGERS 

 

18’S UNDER GIRLS 
1998/99   A. GATER    WHITE DEVILS 

2000/01   Kate SHORTIS   PANTHERS 

2001/02   Kate HOGAN    SAWYERS SMURFS  

2004/05   Amy MATHIESON   SAWYERS SPOTS 

2005/06   Shani AMOS    PANTHERS BLACK 

2006/07   Sinead O’SULLIVAN  CHIDLOW SUGABUNKLES 

2007/08   Jessica DOUTCH   PANTHERS BLACK 

2008/09   Linda DAVIS    PANTHERS RED 

2009/10   Eliza JOSEY    SAWYERS SPARKS 

2010/11   Rebecca VANDERLAAN  GIDGE ALLSORTS 

2011/12   Breanna HOLMES   GIDGE BLUESTARS 

2012/13   Sara ROBSON   GIDGE GANGSTERS 

2014/15   Jessica BOUDEWYNS  SAWYERS SPARROWS 

2015/16   Madison ROSSEN   PANTHERS RED 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

18’S UNDER GIRLS Cont 

2016/17   Madison ROSSEN   PANTHERS RED 

2018/19   Jaymie ROBINSON   GIDGE THUNDER 

2019/20   Haydee ARMITAGE   HELENA HAWKS 

2020/21   Haydee ARMITAGE   PANTHERS BLACK 

 

16’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1 
2000/01  Coleman RING   STRYKERS 

2001/02  Scott MIDDLETON   SAWYERS SHARKS 

2002/03  Kyle GREEN    SAWYERS SONICS 

2003/04  Kieran DENT    MUNDARING MAVERICKS 

2004/05  Rohan SANKEY   PANTHERS BLACK 

2005/06  Tim HUNTLEY   ALL STARS 

2006/07  Josh GRAY    PANTHERS RED 

2007/08  Tye KOOIMAN   PANTHERS 

2008/09  Jonathan DIAZ   SAWYERS SUNS 

2009/10  Reece MABBS   PANTHERS BLACK 

2010/11  Callan GRAY    PANTHERS 

2011/12  Jack FITZPATRICK   ALLSTARS 

2012/13  Jack FITZPATRICK   ALLSTARS 

2013/14  Jamon CHILD    GIDGE PHOENIX 

2014/15  Jarrad MCKERCHER   PARKY PILGRAMS 

2015/16  Kye BARKER    GIDGE ALLSTARS 

2016/17  Kyle ROBINSON   PARKY PYTHONS 

2017/18  Tyson LUMBACA   HELENA HURRICANES 

2018/19  Riley MARRIOTT   HELENA HOOPS 

 2019/20  Julian MATURO   MUSTANGS 

 2020/21  Oscar JENKINS   HELENA HUNTER 

 

16’S UNDER BOYS Div. 2 
2013/14  Dylan WHITE-KIELY  GIDGE DRAGONS 

2014/15  Oscar MATTHEWS   HELENA HOTSHOTS 

2015/16  Joshua FAULKNER   GIDGE GLOBETROTTERS 

2016/17  Tyson LUMBACA   HELENA HURRICANES 

2017/18  Jacob SCHWAGERMANN  SAWYERS STINGERS 

2018/19  Chase BRYDSON   HILLS LIONS’ LEGENDS 

2019/20  Jett BIEUNDURRY   HELENA HOTSHOTS 

2020/21  Gnarls LUXTON   VIPERS 

 

16’S UNDER BOYS Div. 3 
 2019/20  Levi MICHON   CHIDLOW CATS BLACK 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

16’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.1 
2000/01  Kate HOGAN    SAWYERS SMURFS 

2001/02  Tia OZARCZUK   KAOS 

2002/03  Carly AMOS    PANTHERS 

2003/04  Siobhan HEROLD   MUNDARING MAVERICKS 

2004/05  Shani AMOS    BLACK MAGIC 

2005/06  Tegan MORRELL   OASIS 

2006/07  Bec PAYNE    PANTHERS RED 

2007/08  Lauren SCHORER   GIDGE ANGELS 

2008/09  Caitlin BURROWS   CHIDLOW ANGELS 

2009/10  Breanna HOLMES   GIDGE BLUE STARS 

2010/11  Breanna HOLMES   GIDGE BLUE STARS 

2011/12  Sara ROBSON   GIDGE GANGSTERS 

2012/13  Madison ROSSEN   PANTHERS RED 

2013/14  Madison ROSSEN   PANTHERS RED 

2014/15  Madison ROSSEN   PANTHERS RED 

2015/16  Samantha KIRWAN   SACRED HEART SLAMMERS 

2016/17  Mikayla BOWEN   DARLINGTON DEMONS 

2017/18  Jaymie ROBINSON   GIDGE THUNDER 

2018/19  Mikayla FOOT    MCC MUSTANGS 

2019/20  Cassidy DYER   PANTHERS RED 

2020/21  Madison DYMNICKI   MUSTANGS 3 

 

 

16’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.2 
2018/19  Kayla WHITELY   PARKY CYCLONES 

2020/21  Pippa SCOTT    LOVEHEARTS 

 

14’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1  
2000/01  Travis ORTON   PANTHERS RED 

2001/02  David MURRAY   KINGS 

2002/03  Eric JUDD    SAWYERS SNIPERS 

2003/04  Leon VAN VOORTHUIZEN  RAPTORS 

2004/05  Luke DURBRIDGE   GIDGE BULLDOGS 

2005/06  Morgan CHAMP   PANTHERS RED 

2006/07  Jonathan DIAZ   SAWYERS SUNS 

2007/08  Zac RUMSEY    SAWYERS STINGRAYS 

2008/09  Matt ELDER    PANTHERS RED 

2009/10  Chris FIRNS    CHIDLOW DEMONS 

2010/11  James TOMPSETT   PANTHERS 

2011/12  Sam FOWLER   PANTHERS RED 

2012/13  Dylan WHITE-KIELY  GIDGE DRAGONS 

2013/14  Riley ANDERSON   CHIDLOW MAGIC 

2014/15  Matt BROCK    SACRED HEART CYCLONES 

2015/16  Tyson LUMBACA   HELENA HURRICANES 

2016/17  Kane HIGGINS   PARKY PUNISHERS 

2017/18  Adam BROCK   SACRED HEART TORNADOES 

2018/19  Oakleigh MATHER   PARKY RAPTORS 

 2019/20  Benjamin JOYNES   CHIDLOW CATS BLACK 

 2020/21  Milan MUNRO   MUSTANGS 1 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

14’S UNDER BOYS DIV. 2 
2012/13  Kye BARKER    GIDGE GLOBETROTTERS 

2013/14  Matthew BROCK   SACRED HEART CYCLONES 

2014/15  Tyson LUMBACA   HELENA HUSTLERS 

2015/16  Bryn REGAN    SAWYERS SUNS 

2017/18  Hamish MASSIE   GIDGE TITANS 

2018/19  Declan JUSTICE   PANTHERS WHITE 

2019/20  Ayden BILL    SACRED HEART LION HEARTS 

2020/21  Lachlan KING    HILLS LIONS JETS 

 

14’S UNDER BOYS DIV.3 
2019/20  Clayton BROWN   PARKY ROOS RED 

Amos KINGSTON   CHILDOW CATS 

 2020/21  Bailey Ferraro    PANTHERS RED 

 

14’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.1 
2000/01  Carly AMOS    PANTHERS RED 

2001/02  Carly AMOS    PANTHERS BLACK 

2002/03  Molly MACKAY   COMETS 

2003/04  Stephanie OTTO   SAWYERS SPICE 

2004/05  Stephanie OTTO   SAWYERS SAPPHIRES 

2005/06  Eliza BULLOCK   HOOTERS 

2006/07  Sophie TUCKER   PANTHERS BLACK 

2007/08  Caitlin BURROWS   CHIDLOW THE ANGELS 

2008/09  Tegan ROWE    PANTHERS RED 

2009/10  Kellie HAROLD   PANTHERS BLACK 

2010/11  Verity JOYCE    PANTHERS 

2011/12  Jamie TEDIEKE   CHIDLOW CHERRYBOMBS 

2012/13  Jamie TEDIEKE   HELENA HEAT 

2013/14  Jewell WILLIAMS   SACRED HEART SLAMMERS 

2014/15  Maddison ROSSEN   THE DESTROYERS 

2015/16  Jaymie ROBINSON   GIDGE DISCO NINJAS 

2016/17  Jaymie ROBINSON   GIDGE DISCO NINJAS 

2017/18  Ruth BRONKHORST   DARLINGTON PISTONS 

2018/19  Jasmine WILLIAMS   DARLINGTON DEVILS 

2019/20  Laila JENKINS   MUSTANGS 3 

2020/21  Brooklyn GURBIEL   CHIDLOW CATS 

 

14’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.2 
2014/15  Makayla MASSIE   GIDGE BOMBS 

2017/18  Telea McLAREN   PANTHERS RED 

2018/19  Millie EDGAR   GIDGE GUNS 

2019/20  Brooklyn GURBIEL   CHIDLOW CATS 

2020/21  April READ    MUSTANGS 2 

 

12’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1  
2015/16  Ben MARSHALL   GIDGE BOOMERS 

2016/17  Hamish MASSIE   GIDGE TITANS 

2017/18  Chase BRYDSON   HILLS LIONS’ VIPERS 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

Under 12 Boys Div. 1 cont. 

2018/19  Coby JENKINS   MCC MUSTANGS 

2019/20  Bailey FERRARO   PANTHERS RED         

2020/21  Connor PAINI    MUSTANGS 1 
 

12’S UNDER BOYS DIV.2 
2015/16  Adam BROCK   SACRED HEART STORM 

2016/17  Reife MOLLER   HILLS LIONS’ VIPERS 

2017/18  William LYNCH   HILLS LIONS’ WILDCATS 

2018/19  Milan MONROE   MCC MUSTANGS 

2019/20  Oliver FLYNN   PANTHERS BLACK 

2020/21  James SAUNDERS   DARLINGTON LIGHTNING 

 

12’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.1 
2015/16  Amy BEATON   SAWYERS SHOOTING STARS 

2016/17  Mikayla FOOT   PANTHERS WHITE 

2017/18  Naomi PUNAIVAHA   DARLINGTON DEVILS 

2018/19  Rhianna HOUGHTON   MCC MUSTANGS 

2019/20  Madeline PITT   HELENA HUSKIES 

2020/21  Maddison HEWSON   GIDGE GALLOPERS 

 

12’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.2  
2015/16  Annelies DAY    HILLS LIONS LYNX 

2016/17  Maddie PARKER   SACRED HEART HURRICANES 

2017/18  Luka KELLY    PANTHERS BLACK 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

A GRADE MEN  

 
   1980/81  -  CHIDLOW 

   1981/82  -  PACERS 

   1982/83  -  ACERS 2 

   1983/84  -  HAWKS 

   1984/85  -  HAWKS 

   1985/86  -  SWAN VALLEY 

   1986/87  -  SWAN VALLEY 

   1987/88  -  SWAN VALLEY 

   1988/89  -  ROOS 

   1989/90  -  SWAN VALLEY 

   1990/91  -  MOUNTIES 

   1991/92  -  SLAMMERS 

   1992/93  -  BANDITS 

   1993/94  -  MOUNTIES 

   1994/95  -  MOUNTIES 

   1995/96  -  MOUNTIES 

   1996/97  -  BULLS 

   1997/98  -  BULLS 

   1998/99  -  BULLS 

   1999/00  -  BULLS 

   2000/01  -  BULLS 

   2001/02  -  BULLS 

   2002/03  -  BULLS 

   2003/04  -  BULLS 

   2004/05  -  BULLS 

   2005/06  -  BULLS 

   2006/07  -  SAWYERS T-WOLVES 

   2007/08  -  T-WOLVES 

   2008/09  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2009/10  -  SAWYERS STARS 

   2010/11  -  SAWYERS STARS 

   2011/12  -  SAWYERS ST TROPICS 

2012/13  -  VALLEY ROOS 

2013/14  -  SAWYERS STARS 

2014/15  -  LAKERS 

2015/16  -  SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2016/17  -  SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2017/18  -  SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2018/19  -  SAWYERS SPARTANS 

2019/20 Minor Premiers SAWYERS SUNS 

2020/21  -  SAWYERS SUNS 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

B GRADE MEN 

 
   1980/81  -  HAWKS 

   1981/82  -  MOUNTIES 

   1983/84  -  GIDGEGANNUP 

   1985/86  -  LINLEY VALLEY 

   1986/87  -  MAHOGANY CREEK 

   1987/88  -  DIV. 1 - MAHOGANY CK 

        DIV. 2 - COUGARS 

   1988/89  -  PACERS 

   1989/90  -  PACERS 

   1990/91  -  MAHOGANY CREEK 

   1991/92  -  MAHOGANY CREEK 

   1992/93  -  C.S. BOMBERS 

   1993/94  -  PANTHERS BAD 

   1994/95  -  VALLEY ROOS 

   1995/96  -  VALLEY ROOS 

   1998/99  -  GIDGE RAILS 

   1999/00  -  VOLTRON 

   2000/01  -  SAWYERS SHRAPNEL 

   2001/02  -  VIPERS 

   2002/03  -  WARRIORS 

   2003/04  -  INDUSTRIAL B-BOYS 

   2004/05  -  VIPERS 

   2005/06  -  TEAM REJECTED 

   2008/09  -  RUMBLE 

   2009/10  -  GIDGE GOONS 

   2010/11  -  GLEN FORREST SUPASHOOTERS 

2011/12  -  MIGHTY V’S 

2012/13  -  PANTHERS 

2018/19  -  PANTHERS WHITE 

2019/20 Minor Premiers  PANTHERS WHITE 

2020/21  -  SACRED HEART CYCLONES 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

A GRADE WOMEN 

 
   1980/81  -  GLEN FORREST 

   1981/82  -  DARLINGTON 1 

   1982/83  -  GLEN FORREST 1 

   1983/84  -  GLEN FORREST 1 

   1984/85  -  MAHOGANY CK RED 

   1985/86  -  MAHOGANY CK RED 

   1986/87  -  MAHOGANY CK RED 

   1987/88  -  MAHOGANY CK RED 

   1988/89  -  MAHOGANY CK RED 

   1989/90  -  MAHOGANY CREEK 

   1990/91  -  PACERS 

   1991/92  -  TELSTARS 

   1992/93  -  TELSTARS 

   1993/94  -  PANTHERS RED 

   1994/95  -  PANTHERS RED 

   1995/96  -  PANTHERS 

   1996/97  -  PANTHERS 

   1997/98  -  PANTHERS 

   1998/99  -  ACES 

   1999/00  -  PANTHERS 

   2000/01  -  BRICK 

   2001/02  -  ZARAHEMLA 

   2002/03  -  CHUFF 

   2003/04  -  BRICK 

   2004/05  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2005/06  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2006/07  -  PANTHERS 

   2007/08  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2008/09  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2009/10  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2010/11  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2011/12  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2012/13  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2013/14  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2014/15  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2015/16  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2016/17  -  HILLS LIONS’ COUGARS 

   2017/18  -  SAWYERS SWIFT 

   2018/19  -  HALFCOURT 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PANTHERS WHITE 

   2020/21  -  PANTHERS RED 

   

B GRADE WOMEN 
 

   2017/18  -  SACRED HEART SLAMMERS 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

20’S UNDER MENS DIV.1 
   2019/20 Minor Premiers MUSTANGS 

   2020/21  -  THE CROSSOVERS 
 

18’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1 
   1980/81  -  HAWKS 

   1981/82  -  DARLINGTON 

   1988/89  -  J HAWKS 

   1989/90  -  LAKERS 

   1994/95  -  WOLVERINES 

   1995/96  -  HILLS MAGIC 

   1996/97  -  HILLS MAGIC 

   1997/98  -  PARKY SUNS 

   1998/99  -  MAGIC 

   2001/02  -  RED THREAT 

   2002/03  -  RED THREAT 

   2003/04  -  SAWYERS STARS 

   2004/05  -  JETS ROVERTECH 

   2005/06  -  PUMAS 

   2006/07  -  PANTHERS 

   2007/08  -  CELTICS 

   2009/10  -  LEPRECHAUNS 

   2010/11  -  SAWYERS SUNS   

   2011/12  -  GIDGE GIANTS 

   2012/13  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2013/14  -  GIDGE BULLS 

   2014/15  -  GIDGE HOTRODS 

   2015/16  -  BREWERS 

   2016/17  -  HELENA HOUN’ DAWGS 

   2017/18  -  GIDGE GLOBETROTTERS 

   2018/19  -  BINAR 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PANTHERS RED 

   2020/21  -  HELENA HOOPS 

 

 

18’S UNDER BOYS DIV.2 
   2018/19  -  PANTHERS 

   2020/21  -  HILLS LIONS’ TIGERS 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

18’S UNDER GIRLS 
   1980/81  -  HAWKS 2 

   1981/82  -  PACERS 1 

   1983/84  -  GIDGEGANNUP 

   1998/99  -  PANTHERS 

   2000/01  -  MUNDARING MAVERICKS 

   2001/02  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2004/05  -  GIDGE REDBACKS 

   2005/06  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2006/07  -  BLACK MAGIC 

   2007/08  -  SAWYERS STORM 

   2008/09  -  GIDGE ANGELS 

   2009/10  -  CRACKAZ 

   2010/11  -  PANTHERS 

   2011/12  -  GIDGE BLUESTARS 

   2012/13  -  GIDGE BLUESTARS 

   2014/15  -  ALLSTARS 

   2015/16  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2016/17  -  SACRED  HEART SLAMMERS 

   2018/19  -  GIDGE THUNDER  

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PARKY ROOS GREY  

   2020/21  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

 

 

16’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1 
   1999/00  -  VIPERS 

   2000/01  -  TIGERS 

   2001/02  -  INDUSTRIAL B-BOYS 

   2002/03  -  SAWYERS STARS 

   2003/04  -  KINGS 

   2004/05  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2005/06  -  SAWYERS SHREDDAZ 

   2006/07  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2007/08  -  SAWYERS SUNS 

   2008/09  -  SAWYERS SUNS 

   2009/10  -  SAWYERS STINGRAYS 

2010/11  -  PANTHERS 

   2011/12  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2012/13  -  GIDGE BULLS 

   2013/14  -  GIDGE HOTRODS 

   2014/15  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2015/16  -  GIDGE ALLSTARS 

   2016/17  -  PARKY PYTHONS 

   2017/18  -  PARKY TUFF NUTS 

   2018/19  -  BINAR WARRIORS 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers CHIDLOW CATS BLACK 

   2020/21  -  MUSTANGS 1 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION  

 

16’S UNDER BOYS DIV.2 
   2013/14  -  GIDGE DRAGONS 

   2014/15  -  CHIDLOW MAGIC 

   2015/16  -  HELENA HAVOC 

   2016/17  -  SAWYERS SPRITES 

   2017/18  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2018/19  -  HILLS LIONS’ LEGENDS 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PARKY ROOS GREY 

   2020/21  -  HUSTLERS 

 

16’S UNDER BOYS DIV.3 
   2019/20 Minor Premiers DARLINGTON DYNAMOS 

    

16’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.1 
   1999/00  -  MUNDARING MAVERICKS 

   2000/01  -  PANTHERS 

   2001/02  -  KAOS 

   2002/03  -  PANTHERS 

   2003/04  -  PANTHERS 

   2004/05  -  JETS 

   2005/06  -  BLACK MAGIC 

   2006/07  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2007/08  -  GIDGE ANGELS 

  2008/09  -  SAWYERS SPARKZ 

  2009/10  -  PANTHERS RED 

  2010/11  -  GIDGE BLUE STARS 

  2011/12  -  PANTHERS RED 

  2012/13  -  PANTHERS RED 

  2013/14  -  PANTHERS RED 

  2014/15  -  SACRED HEART SLAMMERS 

  2015/16  -  DESTROYERS 

  2016/17  -  DESTROYERS 

  2017/18  -  GIDGE THUNDER 

  2018/19  -  MCC MUSTANGS 

  2019/20 Minor Premiers MUSTANGS 1 

  2020/21  -  MUSTANGS 3 

 

16’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.2 
  2018/19  -  PARKY CYCLONES 

  2020/21  -  PANTERS RED 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 

 

14’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1 
   1999/00  -  SAWYERS SPURS 

   2000/01  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2001/02  -  KINGS 

   2002/03  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2003/04  -  DODGERS 

   2004/05  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2005/06  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2006/07  -  SAWYERS SUNS 

   2007/08  -  SAWYERS STINGRAYS 

   2008/09  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2009/10  -  CHIDLOW DEMONS 

   2010/11  -  PANTHERS 

   2011/12  -  GIDGE PHOENIX 

   2012/13  -  GIDGE PHOENIX 

   2013/14  -  CHIDLOW MAGIC 

   2014/15  -  SACRED HEART CYCLONES 

   2015/16  -  HELENA HURRICANES 

   2016/17  -  PARKY PUNISHERS 

   2017/18  -  CHIDLOW COUGARS 

   2018/19  -  HELENA HUNTERS 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PARKY ROOS 

   2020/21  -  PANTHERS RED  

 

14’S UNDER BOYS DIV.2 
   2011/12  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2012/13  -  GIDGE GLOBETROTTERS 

   2013/14  -  PARKY ALLSTARS 

   2014/15  -  GIDGE DEVILS 

   2015/16  -  GIDEGE DEMONS 

   2015/16  -  GIDGE DEMONS 

  2017/18  -  HELENA HOOPS 

  2018/19  -  PANTHERS RED 

  2019/20 Minor Premiers HILLS LIONS’ PUMAS    

  2020/21  -  BASSENDEAN GALAXY 

 

 

14’S UNDER BOYS DIV.3 
   2019/20 Minor Premiers PANTHERS RED 

  2020/21  -  HILLS LIONS’ RENEGADES 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

14’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.1 
   1999/00  -  KAOS 

   2000/01  -  KAOS 

   2001/02  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2002/03  -  COUGARS 

   2003/04  -  BLACK MAGIC 

   2004/05  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2005/06  -  CHIC-A-BEEZ 

   2006/07  -  SAWYERS SPARKZ 

   2007/08  -  ALLSORTS 

   2008/09  -  GIDGE BLUE STARS 

   2009/10  -  GIDGE GANGSTERS 

2010/11  -  PANTHERS 
   2011/12  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2012/13  -  HELENA HEAT 

   2013/14  -  SACRED HEART SLAMMERS 

   2014/15  -  THE DESTROYERS 

   2015/16  -  GIDGE DISCO NINJAS 

   2016/17  -  GIDGE DISCO NINJAS 

   2017/18  -  SAWYERS SHOOTING STARS 

   2018/19  -  DARLINGTON DEVILS 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers MUSTANGS 3 

   2020/21  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

 

14’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.2 
   2014/15  -  PARKY PUMAS 

   2017/18  -  CHIDLOW STARS 

   2018/19  -  GIDGE GUNS 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PANTHERS BLACK 

   2020/21  -  GIDGE GUMNUTS 

 

12’S UNDER BOYS DIV.1  
   2015/16  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2016/17  -  GIDGE TITANS 

   2017/18  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2018/19  -  MCC MUSTANGS 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers CHIDLOW CATS 

   2020/21  -  MUSTANGS 1 

 

12’S UNDER BOYS DIV.2 
   2015/16  -  SACRED HEART STORM 

   2016/17  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2017/18  -  HELENA HOOPERS 

   2018/19  -  PARKY SWISH 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers PANTHERS BLACK 

   2020/21  -  DARLINGTON LIGHTNING 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS SUMMER COMPETITION 
 

12’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.1 
   2015/16  -  SAWYERS SHOOTING STARS 

   2016/17  -  DARLINGTON DODGERS 

   2017/18  -  DARLINGTON DEVILS 

   2018/19  -  PANTHERS BLACK 

   2019/20 Minor Premiers HILLS LYONS CYCLONE 

   2020/21  -  PANTHERS RED 

 

12’S UNDER GIRLS DIV.2  
   2015/16  -  DARLINGTON DODGERS 

   2016/17  -  PANTHERS RED 

   2017/18  -  PANTHERS WHITE 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS WINTER COMPETITION 
 

MEN DIVISION 1 
2018   Matthew ELDER  Panthers Black 

2019   Tyson LUMBACA  Panthers 

2020    - 

2021   Thomas STRELEIN  Sawyers Steelers 

 

MEN DIVISION 2 
2019   Markus ORCHARD  Panthers White 

   Damien GIDGUP  Sawyers Solders 

    

WOMEN 
2018   Lee JENKINS   MCC Mustangs 

2019   Amber BROWNING  Panthers Black 

2020    - 

2021   Sophie  DUNCAN  Panthers Red 

 

UNDER 18 BOYS 
2018   Jayden BATHURST   Sawyers Scorpions 

2019   Kody BACON   Panthers Red 

2020    - 

2021   Matthew GOODWIN  Helena Hoops 

 

 UNDER 16 BOYS 
2018   Riley MARRIOTT    Helena Hoops 

2019   James PALUMBO  York 

   2020    - 

 

UNDER 16 BOYS DIV. 1 
      2021   Zac GUYLER   Hustlers 

 

UNDER 16 BOYS DIV. 2 

2021   Coby JENKINS  Mustangs 2 

 

UNDER 16 GIRLS 
   2019   Mikayla FOOT  Mustangs 2 

   2021   Rhianna HOUGHTON Mustangs 1 

 

UNDER 14 BOYS  
2018   Julian MATURO   Parky Pointers 

2019   Jye NARRIER   Chidlow Cats 2 

2020    - 

 

UNDER 14 BOYS Div. 1 
   2021   Lachlan KING   Hills Lions Thunder 

 

UNDER 14 BOYS Div. 2 
   2021   Kai FIRTH   Parky Roos Grey 
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FAIREST AND BEST AWARDS WINTER COMPETITION 
 

UNDER 14 GIRLS 
2018   Naomi PUNAIVAHA  Devils 

2019   Ruby CARBOON  Mustangs 2  

2020    -       

 2021   Heidi LUCASSEN  Helena Hammers 

 

UNDER 12 BOYS  
2018   Levi HEWITT   Parky Raptors 

2019   Manly HOLDER  Noobs 

2020    -     

 

UNDER 12 BOYS Div. 1 
   2021   Isaiah POINEN  Helena Heat 

 

UNDER 12 BOYS Div. 2 
   2021   Jaxon VALENTI  Hills Lions Blazers 

 

UNDER 12 GIRLS  
2018   Laila JENKINS    MCC Mustangs 

2019   Brooklyn GURBIEL  Chidlow Cats  

2021   Jasmine STONE  Hills Lions Cheetahs   
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS WINTER COMPETITION 
 

MEN DIVISION 1  
    2018  SAWYERS SABRES 

2019  PANTHERS 

2020  PANTHERS BLACK  

2021   SAWYERS STEELERS 

  

MEN DIVISION 2  
    2019  SACRED HEART CYCLONES 

 

WOMEN 
    2018  WESTCOAST PEARLS 

    2019  HALFCOURT  

    2020   -       

    2021  PANTHERS RED  

 

UNDER 20 MENS  
2021  MIAMI 

 

    

UNDER 18 BOYS  
    2018  HELENA HURRICANES 

2019  MUSTANGS  

2020  MUSTANGS 

2021  HELENA HOOPS 

    

UNDER 16 BOYS 
    2018  PANTHERS RED 

    2019  HELENA 2 

    2020  PARKY ROOS 

 

UNDER 16 BOYS DIV. 1 
    2021  HUSTLERS 

 

UNDER 16 BOYS DIV. 2 
    2021  MUSTANGS 2 

 

      UNDER 16 GIRLS 
    2019  MUSTANGS   

    2020  MUSTANGS 1 

    2021  MUSTANGS 1 

        

UNDER 14 BOYS  
    2018  PARKY POINTERS 

    2019  PANTHERS BLACK 

    2020  PARKY ROOS RED 

 

UNDER 14 BOYS DIV. 1 
    2021  HILLS LIONS THUNDER 
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PREMIERSHIP WINNERS WINTER COMPETITION 
 

UNDER 14 BOYS DIV. 2 
    2021  PARKY ROOS GREY 

    

UNDER 14 GIRLS  
    2018  CHIDLOW CUBS 

    2019  MUSTANGS 2    

    2020  MUSTANGS 1 

    2021  HELENA HAMMERS 

 

UNDER 12 BOYS   
    2018  HILLS LIONS’ WILDCATS 

    2019  MUSTANGS 

    2020  MUSTANGS 1 

 

UNDER 12 BOYS  DIV. 1 
   2021  HELENA HEAT 

 

UNDER 12 BOYS  DIV. 2 
    2021  HILLS LIONS’ BLAZERS 

 

UNDER 12 GIRLS 
    2018  MCC MUSTANGS 

    2019  CHIDLOW CATS 

    2021  HILLS LIONS’ CHEETAHS 
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TEAMS AND MEMBERSHIP 
BREAKDOWN OF ACTUAL TEAMS AND PLAYERS 

  

 1996/97 U/10 BOYS - 6, U/11 GIRLS - 6, U/11 BOYS - 4 

   U/12 BOYS - 8, U/13 GIRLS - 9, U/13 BOYS - 5 

   U/14 BOYS - 7, U/15 GIRLS - 6, U/16 BOYS - 10, 

   U/18 BOYS - 10, SENIOR MEN - 5, SENIOR WOMEN - 13. 

  

   *TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS - BOYS 456, GIRLS 151 

   *TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS - MEN 59, WOMEN 109 

 

 1997/98 U/10 BOYS - 8, U/11 GIRLS - 5, U/11 BOYS - 4,  

   U/12 GIRLS - 6*, U/12 BOYS - 7*, U/13 GIRLS - 6, 

   U/13 BOYS - 9, U/14 GIRLS - 7, U/14 BOYS - 12*, 

   U/16 GIRLS - 10, U/16 BOYS - 14*, U/18 BOYS - 4, 

   SENIOR MEN - 9, SENIOR WOMEN - 14,  

   SOCIAL MIXED - 7. 

 

 1998/99 U/10 GIRLS - 4, U/10 BOYS - 6;  U/11 mixed - 6; U/12 GIRLS - 7 

   U/12 BOYS-9*; U/13 GIRLS-5; U/13 BOYS-5; U/14 GIRLS-5. 

   U/14 BOYS-10*; U/16 GIRLS-9; U/16 BOYS-12*; U/18 GIRLS-5. 

   U/18 BOYS-5; A WOMEN-5; B WOMEN-6; A MEN-5; B MEN-7 

   SOCIAL MIXED-7. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS  -  BOYS 392*;  GIRLS - 270 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS  -  MEN  - 89*;  WOMEN - 93* 

 

 1999/00 U/10 GIRLS-7, U/10 BOYS-6; U/11 MIXED-7; U/12 GIRLS-6. 

   U/12 BOYS-6; U/13 GIRLS-4; U/13 BOYS - 4; U/14 GIRLS-4. 

   U/14 BOYS-4; U/16 GIRLS-8; U/16 BOYS-10; WOMEN-8; A MEN-7;   

   B MEN-7; MIXED-8*. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS - GIRLS - 238;  BOYS - 241*.     

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS - WOMEN - 69*;  MEN - 120*. 

 

2000/01 U/10 GIRLS-6; U/10 BOYS-4; U/12 GIRLS-11; U/12 BOYS-9. 

   U/14 GIRLS-10; U/14 BOYS-10; U/16 GIRLS-6; U/16 BOYS-8. 

   U/18 GIRLS-4; A WOMEN-4; B WOMEN-6; A MEN-8; B MEN-10. 

   MIXED-4. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS - GIRLS - 291;  BOYS - 242* 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS - WOMEN - 83*;  MEN - 145* 

 

 

 2001/02 U/10 GIRLS-6; U/10 BOYS-7; U/12 GIRLS-13; U/12 BOYS-9. 

   U/14 GIRLS-12; U/14 BOYS-10; U/16 GIRLS-6; U/16 BOYS-9. 

   U/18 GIRLS-5; U/18 BOYS-6; WOMEN-8; A MEN-6; B MEN-7. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS:-  GIRLS—313; BOYS—301. 

TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS:- WOMEN—62; MEN-107 
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                TEAMS AND MEMBERSHIP 

BREAKDOWN OF ACTUAL TEAMS AND PLAYERS 
 
 

2002/03 U/10 GIRLS-4; U/10 BOYS-9; U/12 GIRLS-9; U/12 BOYS-7. 

   U/14 GIRLS-15; U/14 BOYS-12; U/16 GIRLS-15; U/16 BOYS-8. 

   U/18 BOYS-7; WOMEN-10; A MEN-6; B MEN-6. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS:- GIRLS—284; BOYS—316. 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS:- WOMEN—73; MEN—89. 

 

 

2003/04 U/10 GIRLS-5; U/10 BOYS-10; U/12 GIRLS-8; U/12 BOYS-7. 

   U/14 GIRLS-12; U/14 BOYS-10; U/16 GIRLS-12; U/16 BOYS-9. 

   U/18 BOYS-4; WOMEN-9; A MEN-8; B MEN-6. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS:- GIRLS—278; BOYS—296. 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS:- WOMEN—66; MEN—105. 

 

 

 2004/05 U/10 GIRLS-7; U/10 BOYS-8; U/12 GIRLS-11; U/12 BOYS-12. 

   U/14 GIRLS-9; U/14 BOYS-9; U/16 GIRLS-13; U/16 BOYS-11. 

   U/18 GIRLS-6; U/18 BOYS-5; WOMEN-4; A MEN-8; B MEN-6. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS:- GIRLS-338; BOYS – 325 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS:- WOMEN – 27; MEN – 117. 
 

* THESE FIGURES INCLUDE PLAYER NUMBERS FOR THE 

WINTER JUNIOR & SENIOR MIXED COMPETITIONS. 

 

 

2005/06 U/10 GIRLS-9; U/10 BOYS-8; U/12 GIRLS-9; U/12 BOYS-12. 

   U/14 GIRLS-8; U/14 BOYS-8; U/16 GIRLS-9; U/16 BOYS-10. 

   U/18 GIRLS-6; U/18 BOYS-8; WOMEN-4; A MEN-6; B MEN-6. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 310;   BOYS – 322 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 26; MEN – 83. 

 

  

 2006/07 U/10 GIRLS-5; U/10 BOYS-8; U/12 GIRLS-15; U/12 BOYS-16. 

   U/14 GIRLS-10; U/14 BOYS-12; U/16 GIRLS-10; U/16 BOYS-6. 

   U/18 GIRLS-9; U/18 BOYS-9; WOMEN-10; MEN-12. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 357;   BOYS – 381 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 65; MEN – 85. 
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TEAMS AND MEMBERSHIP 
BREAKDOWN OF ACTUAL TEAMS AND PLAYERS 

2007/08 U/10 GIRLS-8; U/10 BOYS-13; U/12 GIRLS-9; U/12 BOYS-14. 

   U/14 GIRLS-12; U/14 BOYS-12; U/16 GIRLS-11; U/16 BOYS-7. 

   U/18 GIRLS-8; U/18 BOYS-7; WOMEN-7; MEN-12. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 384;   BOYS – 424 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 56; MEN – 86. 

 

2008/09 U/10 GIRLS-7; U/10 BOYS-9; U/12 GIRLS-9; U/12 BOYS-15. 

   U/14 GIRLS-10; U/14 BOYS-10; U/16 GIRLS-8; U/16 BOYS-11. 

   U/18 GIRLS-8; WOMEN-10; MEN-14. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 340;   BOYS – 350 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 63; MEN – 114. 

 

2009/10 U/10 GIRLS-6; U/10 BOYS-8; U/12 GIRLS-7; U/12 BOYS-13. 

   U/14 GIRLS-9; U/14 BOYS-12; U/16 GIRLS-8; U/16 BOYS-9. 

   U/18 GIRLS-5; U/18 BOYS-8; WOMEN-9; MEN-13. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 250;   BOYS – 354 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 63; MEN – 104. 

 

 2010/11 10/U GIRLS-9; 10/U BOYS-11; 12/U GIRLS-9; 12/U BOYS-16 

   14/U GIRLS-9; 14/U BOYS-10 U/16 GIRLS-10; U/16 BOYS-9 

   U/18 GIRLS-4; U/18 BOYS-7; WOMEN-10; MEN-12 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 289;   BOYS – 387 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 66; MEN – 98. 

  

2011/12 10/U GIRLS-10; 10/U BOYS-9; 12/U GIRLS-13; 12/U BOYS-16 

   14/U GIRLS-11; 14/U BOYS-16 U/16 GIRLS-8; U/16 BOYS-11 

   U/18 GIRLS-6; U/18 BOYS-6; WOMEN-10; MEN-10 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS - 334;   BOYS – 427 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 78; MEN – 97. 

 

 2012/13 10/U GIRLS-9; 10/U BOYS-11; 12/U GIRLS-15; 12/U BOYS-18 

   14/U GIRLS-8; 14/U BOYS-19; 16/U GIRLS-7; 16/U BOYS-9 

   18/U GIRLS-6; 18/U BOYS-7; WOMEN-7; MENS-12. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 360; BOYS – 512 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 56; MEN – 96. 

 

 2013/14 10/U GIRLS-13; 10/U BOYS-16; 12/U GIRLS-11; 12/U BOYS-15 

   14/U GIRLS-11; 14/U BOYS-18; 16/U GIRLS-8; 16/U BOYS-14 

   18/U BOYS-5; WOMEN-10; MEN-6. 

 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 339;  BOYS – 534 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS  -  WOMEN  -  82;  MEN  -  50 
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TEAMS AND MEMBERSHIP 
BREAKDOWN OF ACTUAL TEAMS AND PLAYERS 

 

2014/15 10/U GIRLS-11; 10/U BOYS-18; 12/U GIRLS-12; 12/U BOYS-16 

   14/U GIRLS-13; 14/U BOYS-17; 16/U GIRLS-6; 16/U BOYS-16 

   18/U GIRLS-4; 18/U BOYS-5; WOMEN-8; MEN-8. 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 334;  BOYS – 569 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS  -  WOMEN  -  63;  MEN  -  69 

 

2015/16 8/U – 12; 10/U GIRLS-10; 10/U BOYS-17; 12/U GIRLS-14; 12/U BOYS-18 

   14/U GIRLS-15; 14/U BOYS-14; 16/U GIRLS-10; 16/U BOYS-18 

   18/U GIRLS-4; 18/U BOYS-11; WOMEN-8; MEN-8, MIXED-4. 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 386;  BOYS – 598 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS  -  WOMEN  -  57;  MEN  -  54;  MIXED – 30 

 

2016/17 8/U – 17; 10/U GIRLS-14; 10/U BOYS-14; 12/U GIRLS-15; 12/U BOYS-21 

   14/U GIRLS-10; 14/U BOYS-14; 16/U GIRLS-10; 16/U BOYS-16 

   18/U GIRLS-4; 18/U BOYS-5; WOMEN-10; MEN-8, MIXED-6 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 398;  BOYS – 700 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS  -  WOMEN  -  65;  MEN  -  60;  MIXED – 45 

 

 2017/18 8/U – 13; 10/U GIRLS-10; 10U BOYS-16; 12/U GIRLS-17; 12/U BOYS-21. 

   14/U GIRLS-11; 14/U BOYS-15; 16/U GIRLS-5; 16/U BOYS-12. 

   18/U BOYS-9; WOMEN-14; MEN-11; MIXED-5 

   TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 435;  BOYS - 641 

   TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN – 108;  MEN – 82;  MIXED – 45 

 

 2018/19  These figures include junior and senior winter competition 

U/8-4; U10 MIXED-11; U12 GIRLS-17; U12 BOYS-38; U14 GIRLS-17.  

U14 BOYS-26; U16 GIRLS-12; U16 BOYS-17; U18 GIRLS-4; U18 BOYS-20. 

WOMEN-22; MEN-30 

TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 450; BOYS - 752 

TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN - 134; MEN – 258; MIXED – 35 

 

2019/20  These figures include junior and senior winter competition 

MINIBALL -6; U10 MIXED-21;  U12 GIRLS-12; U12 BOYS-30; U14 GIRLS-19.  

U14 BOYS-19; U16 GIRLS-15; U16 BOYS-33; U18 GIRLS-15; U18 BOYS-20; U20 

WOMEN-15; MEN-26 MIXED SENIOR:4 

TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 487; BOYS - 962 

TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN - 135; MEN – 306; MIXED – 35 

             

 2020/21 These figures include junior and senior winter competition 

U10 MIXED-20;  U12 GIRLS-11; U12 BOYS-27; U14 GIRLS-16.  

U14 BOYS-38; U16 GIRLS-13; U16 BOYS-28; U18 GIRLS-4; U18 BOYS-20; U20 

MEN-20; MEN-32; WOMEN-17  MIXED SENIOR:6 

 

TOTAL JUNIOR PLAYERS – GIRLS – 433; BOYS - 1058 

TOTAL SENIOR PLAYERS – WOMEN - 128; MEN – 317; MIXED – 37 
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TEAMS AND MEMBERSHIP 
BREAKDOWN OF ACTUAL TEAMS AND PLAYERS 

 

 

  NIGHTS     GAMES PER      AUSSIE 

 YEAR OF PLAY COURTS TEAMS WEEK  PLAYERS        HOOPS 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 1995/96     2        8     97*        52*       854* 

 1996/97     2        8              109*        52*       775*    

 1997/98     3*        9*   122*        57*       879* 

 1998/99     3*        9*   118*        63*       820* 

 1999/00     3*        9*     96*        47*       687* 

 2000/01     4*        9*   104*        51*       761* 

 2001/02     2        8   104        48        783 

 2002/03     2        8   103        48           788# 

 2003/04     2        8   100        48        791# 

 2004/05     2        8    97        51        807# 

 2005/06     2        8   103        50        759# 

 2006/07     2         8    122        59        888 

 2007/08     2        8   120        60        950 

 2008/09     2        8   111        54        867 

 2009/10     2        8   107        51        771 

 2010/11     2        8   116        53        840 

 2011/12     2        8   124        60        936 

 2012/13     2        8   128        62      1024 

 2013/14     2        8   127        60      1005 

 2014/15     2        8   134        70      1061# 

 2015/16     2        8   153        71      1145# 

 2016/17     2                        8                 165                       75*                1364#  

 2017/18     4*       11#   168*        74      1386# 

 2018/19     7*       14#   210        107#     1771# 

 2019/20     4       12   237=        112=     1889= 

 2020/21              6       12                245^                     114 =     1919=^  186 

  

*These figures include the Junior and Senior Winter Mixed Competition played on Saturday and Wednesday 

nights respectively. 

 # Includes Saturday/Sunday Mini-ballers.  

= Affected by Pandemic COVID-19 

^ Not inclusive of Aussie Hoops Players 

 Note: As from 2018/19 the figures include juniors & seniors winter competition  
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HILLS RAIDERS BASKETBALL ASSOCIATION 

 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

HELD AT THE MUNDARING ARENA, BENDIGO ROOM ON 

MONDAY 14th of September 2020 COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM 

 

Present: Bill Edwards, HRBA    Kathleen McGowan, HRBA 

  Verica O’Brien, HRBA   Norbert Yip, HRBA 

  Daniel Sixsmith, HRBA   Robert Little, HRBA 

  Deb White-Kiely, HRBA   Jody Brown, HRBA 

  Phillip Croot, HRBA    Jerrith Reynolds, HRBA 

  Jono Diaz, HRBA    Julie Champ, Life Member   

  Cheryl Steele, Life Member             Margaret Dent, Life Member 

  Lizzy Falconbridge, Life Member  Mike Wilkinson, Life Member 

  Ken Rose, Life Member   Karen Diaz, Life Member 

  Leslie Gregorovich, Chidlow BC  Carly Mora, MCC Mustangs 

  Savannah Warren, Parkerville Kangaroos Kerry Gow, Hills Lions BC 

  Kellie McCrum, Gidgegannup BC  Amanda Marriott, Helena BC   

  Lauren Reynolds, Chidlow   Amanda Mora, HRBA 

  Hannah Dyer, Panthers   Sylvia Karemaker, Chidlow 

  Tina O’Neil, Hills Lions   Michelle Hitchcock, Mustangs 

  Darren Justice, Parky Roos   Tracey Sullivan, Panthers 

  Janie Devenish, Mustangs   Lisa Walter, Panthers 

  Paul Guyler, Parky Roos   Billie-Jo Thompson, Parky Roos 

  Jennie McGowan, Panthers   Anis McGowan, Panthers 

  Chantal Kitchin, Panthers   Kylie Vardy, Sacred Heart Sporting Group 

  Neridah Zlatnik, Panthers   Mitch Massam, Hills Lions 

  Jessica Hall, Parky Roos   Kate Bourgault, Panthers 

  Beth Perry, Sawyers Valley BC  Angus McGowan, Panthers 

  Robert McGowan, Panthers   Rahni Bacon, Panthers  

  Dave Bearham, Parky Roos   Genna Dilley, Chidlow 

  Dianna Phillips, Panthers   Ngingarrn Phillips, Panthers  

  Connor O’Brien, Sacred Heart  Jack Martin, Sacred Heart 

  Sophie Elsdon, Parky Roos   Adam Fox, Panthers 

  Danni Sargeant, Mustangs   Jodie Clemesha, Helena  

  Amie Thorns, Hills Lions   Natalie Massam, Hills Lions 

  Donna Fox, Hills Lions   Vanessa Murphy, HRBA 

  Amy Preston, Panthers   Elissa Beaton, Sawyers 

  Samantha Allan, Mustangs   Stephen Duncan, Sacred Heart 

  Liam Taylor, Sacred Heart   Kate Preston, Panthers 

  Benjamin Smith, Sawyers   Corinna Thomas, Helena   

  Mark Thomas, Helena    Jundamurra Scifleet-Phillips, Panthers 

  Isaac Oliver, Panthers    Morgan Champ, Panthers 

  Jessica Boudewyns, Chidlow   Kelly Bertolini, Hills Lions 

  Kate Myburgh, Panthers   Steven Lang, Sacred Heart 

  Garry Allan, Mustangs   Greg Montgomery, Mustangs 

  David Dyer, HRBA    Kelly Randall, Hills Lions   

  Brooke Demasson, Hills Lions  Sandra Myles, Hills Lions 

  Hutton, Sacred Heart    Craig Stanger, Mustangs 
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  Sarah Cole, Parky Roos   Ben Jenkins, Mustangs 

  Kelly Brydson, Hills Lions   Charlie Smart, Chidlow 

  Oisin Allen, Sacred Heart   Paula Hill, Panthers 

  Oceana D’Abbs, Hills Lions   Sharon D’Abbs, Hills Lions 

  Juliette Buchanan, Helena   Renee Harrison, Panthers 

  Oakley Harrison, Panthers   Michelle Robinson, Panthers 

  Sofia Jones, Sawyers     Emily Jones, Sawyers 

  Paul Jones, Sawyers    Rachel Bacon, Panthers 

  Mark Newbound, Hills Lions   S Peneketh, Hills Lions 

  Veronica Sutherland, Panthers  K Erceg, Chidlow 

  J Lavell-Haigh, Panthers   Michelle Hitchcock, Panthers  

  Safiyah Warren, Chidlow 

 

Apologies: Chuck Hughes, Life Member    

 

Chairman: Mike Cuthbert, Life Member  

 

Correspondence in: Nil 

 

The current serving President, Bill Edwards, welcomed all present and declared the Hills Raiders Basketball 

Association Annual General Meeting open. 

 

Minutes of previous meeting were moved. 

 

President’s Report: 

Bill Edwards, Robert Little, President, welcomed everyone to the 2020 Annual General Meeting. Bill re-

iterated points from his Annual Report 

 

Auditors Report: 

The Auditor’s report, conducted by Strategic Integrative Accounting, was distributed prior to the meeting in the 

agenda documents – it was also included in the Annual Report.   

Moved Verica O’Brien – 2nd Daniel Sixsmith. 

 

The current Office Bearers and General Committee Members were stood down and the positions were declared 

vacant.  Lifetime Member, Mike Cuthbert, assumed the role of Chairman until a new President was declared.  

He introduced himself to the members, parents, carers, and guests and then stated who was able to vote and 

what a financial member was, as per the HRBA Constitution.   

 

President -    Charlie Smart nominated Bill Edwards – Lauren Reynolds 2nd - Carried. 

    Neridah Zlatnik nominated Kathleen McGowan – Tracey Sullivan 2nd Carried. 

 

As there were two nominations, Kathleen and Bill were both offered the opportunity to introduce themselves to 

the members and open themselves to a short questions and answer session by the members.  Kathleen was the 

first speaker and Bill was the second, with both answering a lively question and answer session during their 

speaking time. 

 

The members then cast their votes, with slips which were provided to each eligible member at time of entry at 

the meeting.   The votes were collected and were then tallied by Jody Brown, General Committee Member and 

Shannan Jones, Administrator. 

 

Results:   46 Kathleen McGowan      71 Bill Edwards 

Bill Edwards was declared the President of Hills Raiders Basketball Association for 2021.  The voting slips 

were directed to be destroyed after the meeting. 

 

Vice President – Bill Edwards nominated Charlie Smart – 2nd   Daniel Sixsmith- Carried.     
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Secretary -  Charlie Smart nominated Norbert Yip – 2nd Phil Croot - Carried.  

Treasurer -     Daniel Sixsmith nominated Verica O’Brien – 2nd Norbert Yip– Carried.  

Property Officer -  Verica O’Brien nominated Daniel Sixsmith – Paul Jones 2nd - Carried. 

 

All Office Bearers were nominated without contest; therefore, the casting of votes was not necessary. 

 

Committee Members  

Natalie Massam nominated Kelly Randall – 2nd   Brooke Demasson- Carried. 

Charlie Smart nominated Jerrith Reynolds - Daniel Sixsmith 2nd– Carried. 

Verica O’Brien nominated Angela McAnulty – 2nd   Daniel Sixsmith– Carried 

Norbert Yip nominated Paul Guyler – 2nd Sarah Cole - Carried 

Paul Guyler nominated Phil Croot – 2nd Norbert Yip – Carried 

Daniel Sixsmith nominated Jessica Boudewyns – 2nd Lauren Reynolds– Carried 

Juliette Buchanan nominated Mark Thomas – 2nd Amanda Marriott – Carried 

 

All General Committee Members were nominated without contest; therefore, the casting of votes was not 

necessary.  The above nominees accepted their nominations. All positions declared completed. 

 

General Business 

There was no general business raised. 

 

Bill thanked everyone for their attendance and looked forward to developing our domestic competition and 

extending the teams participating in the WABL competition for a successful 2020-21 season. 

 

There being no further business the meeting closed at 8.40 pm. 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

    

 2021  2020 

INCOME $  $ 

Aussie hoops 7,049  - 

Canteen Income 44,363  24,149 

Coaching Clinics -  280 

Forfeit Fees -  240 

Holiday Clinics - Court Hire -  1,260 

Interest Received 1,028  3,601 

Miniball -  2,210 

NVPC - WA Police 1,001  1,012 

Referee Courses - HRBA 156  2,674 

Registration Fees 249,439  147,652 

State Champs - Registration Fees 19,377  17,575 

Sundry Income 500  245 

WABL:    

Bank Interest 10  38 

Camp -  1,258 

Fundraising 3,247   

Gate Fees 30,736  8,614 

Holiday Clinics  727  - 

Registration Fees 65,655  47,624 

Sponsors 1,000  3,000 

Skills Sessions 273  - 

Tryouts -  2,754 

Grading day 1,659  - 

Uniforms Income 16,548  1,770 

TOTAL INCOME 442,768  265,956 

    

EXPENSES    

Accountant 3,978  1,050 

Admin Expenses:    

Administrator 23,930  14,075 

Treasurer 13,100  10,130 

Advertising and Marketing 141  1,584 

Arena Expenses 590  7,260 

Aussie Hoops 8,596  - 

Bank Fees 1,654  902 

Basketball WA 147  - 

BBQ Expenses -  59 

 
 

These accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 



HILLS RAIDERS BASKETBALL ASSOCIATION INC 

ABN 22 898 934 409 

 

2 

 

 
 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 
    

 2021  2020 

EXPENSES (CONT.) $  $ 

Canteen Assistant 8,675  252 

Canteen Equipment 734  30 

Canteen Expenses 22,703  14,693 

Canteen Manager 11,391  12,837 

Committee Expenses 1,027  36 

Committee Uniforms 1,796  - 

Computer Expenses 1,387  1,234 

Court Officials:    

Court Controller 4,885  2,925 

Arena set up 3,915  - 

Court Set Up 3,635  4,100 

Donations 2,000  - 

Property Officer -  900 

Depreciation 2,468  1,181 

First Aid Course 436  175 

First Aid Supplies 201  68 

Insurance 1,315  1,267 

Internet 197  446 

Miniball Clinic -  1,658 

MYOB Subscription 1,209  1,245 

NVPC - WA Police 1,184  1,160 

Postage -  12 

Publicity Officer 1,917  - 

Referees:    

Coordinator 11,685  10,290 

Games Personnel -  290 

Gifts 162  206 

Referees - Windup 386  367 

Referees Courses - HRBA 678  3,574 

Referees Expenses 85,033  55,021 

Resources 37  115 

Court Supervisors 2,183  - 

Umpires Clinic -  170 

Uniforms 431  - 

School Development Clinic -  4,860 

Shire Charges 26,032  29,721 

Sports Equipment 814  3,461 

Sports TG Fees 3,539  - 

 
 

These accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 
    

 2021  2020 

EXPENSES (CONT.) $  $ 

State Champs:    

Arena Hire 388  35 

Champs Nominations 4,909  3,225 

Equipment -  78 

Hall Hire 104  69 

MCC Hire -  770 

Player Shirts -  3,796 

Referees 1,891  1,100 

Trophies 226  - 

Stationery -  23 

Windup -  1,106 

Stationery 2,662  1,650 

Sundry Expenses 1,898  1,427 

Telephone Expenses 1,422  1,159 

Trophies 5,929  13,711 

Uniforms 28,653  - 

WABL:    

Bank Fees 632  376 

BWA 2,291  4,140 

Camp Expenses 511  1,776 

Coaching 1,184  240 

Coordinator 10,233  5,198 

Court Controller expenses 3,195  803 

First Aid Kits (95)  223 

Grading Day 3,229  - 

Marketing 921  - 

Nominations 2,255  - 

Publicity Officer 1,917  - 

Referees 10,504  1,387 

Sports TG 51  - 

Sports Equipment 4,286  1,975 

Stationery 406  - 

Sundry Expenses 720  657 

Training Hall Hire 588  - 

Training Arena Hire 13,007  15,931 

Training MCC Hire 12,768  2,104 

Treasurer 500  - 

Trophies 454  453 

Uniforms -  33,545 

WABL NBL 2,528  - 

Webpage 4,382  231 

TOTAL EXPENSES 378,740  284,542 

NET  PROFIT /(LOSS )FOR YEAR 64,028  (18,586) 

 

These accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 Note 
2021  2020 

$  $ 

ASSETS     

CURRENT ASSETS     

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2 345,540  298,418 

Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables 3 2,009  1,176 

Inventory 4 16,457  - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  364,006  299,594 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     

Plant and Equipment 5 10,157  4,920 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  10,157  4,920 

TOTAL ASSETS  374,163  304,514 

     

LIABILITIES     

CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Accounts Payable & Other Payables 6 12,524  6,903 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  12,524  6,903 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  12,524  6,903 

NET ASSETS  361,639  297,611 

     

MEMBERS' FUNDS     

Retained Surplus  361,639  297,611 

TOTAL MEMBERS' FUND  361,639  297,611 

 

These accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

  

 Retained 
Earnings 

 $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2019 316,197 

Comprehensive income  

Net loss for the year attributable to members of entity (18,586) 

Other comprehensive income for the year - 

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to members of the entity (18,586) 

Balance at 30 June 2020 297,611 

Comprehensive income  

Net profit for the year attributable to members of entity 64,028 

Other comprehensive income for the year - 

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to members of the entity 64,028 

Balance at 30 June 2021 361,639 

 

These accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes 
2021  2020 

$  $ 

Receipts from customers  440,907  268,025 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (387,108)  (276,419) 

Interest received  1,028  3,601 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 7 54,827  (4,793) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Purchase of plant and equipment  (7,705)  (3,835) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (7,705)  (3,835) 

Net decrease in cash held  47,122  (8,628) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  298,418  307,046 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year  345,540  298,418 

 
 

These accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 
 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements are special purpose financial statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA). The Committee has determined 
that the association is not a reporting entity. 
 
Statement of Compliance 

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with Association Incorporation Act 2015 (WA), the 
basis of accounting specified by all Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and the disclosure 
requirements of Accounting Standards AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107: Cash 
Flow Statements, AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, AASB 
1031: Materially and AASB 1054: Australian Additional Disclosures. 
 
Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historic costs. They do 
not take into account changing money values or, except where stated specifically, current valuations of non-
current assets. 
 
The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless stated 
otherwise, have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 
 
a. Income Tax 

 No provision for income tax has been made, as the company is exempt from payment of income tax 
under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

  

b. Plant and Equipment  

 

 

Plant and equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.  
 
The depreciable amount of all plant and equipment is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to 
the association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. 
 
Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life to the entity commencing 
from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter 
of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. 
 
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 
 
 Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate 

 Plant and equipment 5 years 
 
The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period. 
 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals of assets are determined as the difference between disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of assets and are recognised in profit or loss. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 
 
 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)  

c. Impairment of Assets 

 At the end of each reporting period, the Committee reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If 
such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable 
amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, to 
the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is 
recognised in the profit or loss statement. 
 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of six months or less. 
 

e. Account Receivable and Other Receivables 

 Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts receivable from host employers. Receivables 
expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current 
assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 
 

f. Revenue and Other Income 

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable or receivable. 
Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and when the criteria for 
each activity have been made. 
 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial 
assets is the rate inherent in the instrument on accrual basis. 
 
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and service tax. 
 

 
g. Accounts Payable and Other Payables 

 Accounts payable and other payables represent the liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting 
period for goods and services received by the association during the reporting period that remain 
unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days 
of recognition of the liability. 

 
h Inventories 

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

   

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
2021 2020 

$ $ 

Cash on hand - HRBA 840 300 

  - WABL 600 - 

Cash at bank - HRBA 123,136 93,546 

 - WABL 55,876 40,511 

Term Deposit 165,088 164,061 

 345,540 298,418 

   

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES   

Trade and other receivables 2,009 1,176 

Less: Provision for impairment - - 

 2,009 1,176 

   

NOTE 4: INVENTORIES   

Uniform at cost 15,427 - 

Canteen at cost 1,030 - 

 16,457 - 

   

NOTE 5: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   

Plant & equipment-at cost 13,807 6,101 

Less: accumulated depreciation (3,650) (1,181) 

Total Plant and Equipment 10,157 4,920 

   

NOTE 6: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER PAYABLES   

Sundry Creditors  12,524 6,903 

   

NOTE 7: CASH FLOW INFORMATION   

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with loss after income tax   

Net profit / (loss) for the year 64,028 (18,586) 

Plus (minus) non-cash items:   

Depreciation 2,468 1,181 

Change in assets and liabilities   

(Increase) in account receivable and debtors (833) 5,671 

(Increase) in inventory (16,457) - 

Increase in accounts payable and other payables 5,621 6,940 

Net cash from operating activities 54,827 (4,794) 

   

NOTE 8: AUDITOR REMUNERATION   

Audit of financial statements   

Auditor – Strategic Integrative Accountants 2,700 2,500 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

NOTE 9: COMPANY DETAILS   

The registered office and principal place of business is   

Hills Raiders Basketball Association Inc   

44 Mundaring Weir Road   

MUNDARING WA 6073   
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ANNUAL STATEMENTS GIVE TRUE AND FAIR VIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 

PERFORMANCE OF INCORPORATED ASSOCIATION 

As per Resolution of the Committee, I William Edwards, President of the Committee of Hills Raiders 
Basketball Association Incorporated., certify that -  

• The statements attached to this certificate present a true and fair view of the financial position
and performance of Hills Raiders Basketball Association Inc. during and at the end of financial
year of the association ending 30 June 2021.

• At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Hills Raiders Basketball
Association Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

President 

William Edwards 

Committee Member 

Verica O’Brien 

Dated this day of 2021     19th August



HRBA Treasurer Report 
280821 MT 

Treasurer’s Summary 
The Audited Financials reflect the income and expenses of three different operating areas, each with a dedicated bank account, budget, and cash flow cycle.  These are: 
 

• Domestic Competition 
• WABL  
• Canteen 

 
The Audited accounts reflect the movement of Income, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities through these enterprises for the period July 1st, 2020, to June 30th, 2021, and 
DO NOT reflect the underlying cash performance.  
 

Enterprise Cashflow/Budget Cycle 
*Canteen is excluded as it does not have a specific term and is auxiliary to Domestic and WABL 

Table 1 2020 2021 
Cashflow 
Cycles Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept 

Audit                                
Domestic                               
WABL                               
*Canteen                               

 
As of the date of the Audit (30/06/2021) neither the Domestic nor WABL Cashflow cycles have been completed and therefore do not represent the Cash performance of each 
enterprise.  
 

Audit Summary 
• The Audit has been completed by Gerry Kong of Strategic Integrative Accountants. 
• The information and management of the Audit process was facilitated by former Treasurer Verica O’Brien and certified by President Bill Edwards on 19th of 

August 2021. 
• There were no issues identified during the Audit Process. 

 
The Basis of Preparation for the Financial Report is on page 7 and confirmed as the Accrual Basis. 
Note 2: Cash & Cash Equivalents - reflect Cash Balances as of the end of the Audit Cycle. Refer page 9 

Note 7: Cash Flow Information – Summarises the Profit adjusted by movement in Balance Sheet items to provide a Net Cash after Operations figure. Refer page 9  
 
The Audited accounts reflect the movement of Income, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities through these enterprises for the period July 1st, 2020, to June 30th, 2021, and 
DO NOT reflect the underlying Cash performance.  
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Adjusted Cashflow Estimates  
As of the date of this Summary neither the Domestic or WABL Cash Flow Cycles have been completed or reconciled. 
The below summary is based on the difference in Opening and Closing balances for each cycle adjusted by known Accounts Payable and Receivable to provide an 
indicative Cash result excluding inventory and Cash on Hand. 
 

  2020           2021         

Acc.  
Balances 

Open 1st 
July Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept 

Audit                                  

Domestic $94,026.14     $88,983.26                     $90,283.25   

WABL $40,510.55       $43,444.29                   $43,909.21   
 
 

Domestic     WABL   
Opening Sep 
2020 $88,983.26   Opening Oct 

2020 $43,444.29 

31/08/2021 $115,860.98   31/08/2021 $47,875.21 
less:     less:   
Payables $10,039.16   Payables $3,966.00 
New Season Fee $15,537.59   New Season Fee   

Adjusted Close 
  

  Adjusted Close $43,909.21 
$90,283.25 

          
Estimated 
Surplus $1,299.99   Estimated 

Surplus $464.92 

 
 
Domestic Estimated Surplus for the Cashflow Cycle is highlighted above  
WABL  Estimated Surplus as of today is highlighted above noting there is still another month of accumulated expenses and fees to be accounted for. 
 
NOTE: 
The presentation of this information and its accuracy is based on a best effort from the available resources. 
Subsequent Systems, Reporting, Analysis and Templates constructed will facilitate greater transparency and accuracy for all stake holders.   
 


	HRBA AGM and Information Pack 2021.pdf
	HRBA AGM and Information Pack 2021
	2021 Agenda
	2020 AGM minutes 
	2021 Finanical Statement 19.08.2021
	Treasurer Report 010921
	Nomination for Position Appendix A

	AGM Nomination Information Sheet 2021




